
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 1st October, 2020 at 2.00 pm. 

A G E N D A

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting to the Barrow Borough Council YouTube 
Channel which can be viewed live via the link below.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

2.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

3.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

4.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

5.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 30th July, 2020.

5 - 20

7.  Public Participation

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (01229 876321).
 
(1) Questions and Representations

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public.

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Work Plan  

To note the Workplan.

21 - 30

(D) 9.  Internal Audit Final Reports  

To note the Internal Audit Final Reports.

31 - 36

(D) 10.  Internal Audit Progress Report  

To note the Internal Audit Progress Report.

37 - 52

(D) 11.  Ombudsman Report  

To receive and note the Local Government Ombudsman Annual 
Report 2019/20.

53 - 60

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


(D) 12.  Compliments and Complaints  

To receive and note the Compliments and Complaints Report.

61 - 70

(D) 13.  Best Practice Recommendations
  
To note the update against the Best Practice Recommendations.

71 - 84

(D) 14.  Recruitment of Independent Person  

To note and approve the recruitment process for the appointment of 
Independent Person(s).

85 - 90

(D) 15.  Code of Conduct and Social Media Reports  

To receive an update on revisions to the Member Code of Conduct 
and endorse the Code and Social Media Guidance.

91 - 122

(D) 16.  Gifts and Hospitality Register  

To review the Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality.

123 - 124

(D) 17.  Risk Register  

To consider Risk Report.

125 - 132

(D) 18.  Draft Governance Statement  

To consider the draft Governance Statement.

133 - 148

(D) 19.  Update from External Auditors  

To receive a verbal update from the External Auditors.

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee Councillors

Councillors Burns (Chairman)
Callister
Ronson
Shirley
M. A. Thomson
Assouad (Vice-Chair)



For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Sharron Rushton
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876321
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Meeting Thursday 30th July, 2020
at 2.00 pm. (Virtual Meeting)

PRESENT:- Councillors Burns (Chair), Assouad (Vice-Chair), Callister, Ronson, 
Shirley and M. A. Thomson.

Officers Present:- Susan Roberts (Director of Resources), Keith Jackson (Head of 
Internal Audit), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), 
John Penfold (Corporate Support Manager), Brooke Parsons (Corporate Support 
Assistant), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place) (Minute Nos. 22 and 23 
only), David Joyce (Commercial Estate Manager) (Minute Nos. 22 and 23 only), 
Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services Officer) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic 
Services Officer).

Also present were Gareth Kelly and Chris Whittingham from Grant Thornton.

1 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraph 3 (Minute Nos. 22-23) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

2 – Declaration of Interest

Councillor Shirley declared an other registrable interest in Agenda Item No. 26 (Part 
Two Item) – Internal Audit Report Updates (Minute No. 22) as his father-in-law 
owned an adjacent business and Agenda Item No 27 (Part Two Item - Internal Audit 
Final Reports (Minute No. 23) as he was the Chairman of the Barrow and District 
Junior Football League and Askam United Football Club.

3 – Minutes

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Shirley, and

RESOLVED:- To agree that the Minutes of the meeting held on 18th December, 
2019 were taken as read and confirmed.

4 – Public Participation

RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
had been received in respect of the meeting.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



5 – Terms of Reference

The Director of Resources reported that following a review of the Council’s 
Constitution, the Committee was now titled the Audit and Governance Committee.  
The Terms of Reference were set out in the Council’s Constitution and were attached 
as an appendix to the report. There were two insertions within the 
Regulatory/Standards Framework which were delegated to the Monitoring Officer.

RESOLVED:- To note the revised Terms of Reference for the Audit and Governance 
Committee as set out in the Council’s Constitution.

6 – Work Plan

The Director of Resources reported that the work plan sets out the business of the 
Audit and Governance Committee to provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that 
the terms of reference were covered.

The work plan was presented to each Audit and Governance Committee meeting to 
provide a forward plan of business.

The work plan was intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference were 
covered. The specific wording within the terms of reference column of the work plan 
required updating.

The work plan reflects the changes to the timeframe for closing the 2019-2020 
accounts.

The work plan was attached as an appendix to the report.

It was moved by Councillor Thomson and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To note the Work Plan.

7 – Internal Audit Final Reports

The Head of Internal Audit reported that Internal Audit had completed a number of 
audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan which was based on a risk 
assessment of the internal control environment. On completion, the final reports were 
presented to this Committee for consideration. 

There had been six final reports appended for consideration.  The reports included 
and their assurance levels were as follows:-

1. IT-73 IT Infrastructure Management - Substantial Assurance;

2. 19-02 Housing Benefits - Substantial Assurance;

3. 19-03 Council Tax and Council Tax Support - Substantial Assurance;

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



4. 19-04 National Non-Domestic Rates - Substantial Assurance;

5. 19-10 Budgetary Control - Unqualified Assurance; and

6. 19-11 Treasury Management - Substantial Assurance

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Thomson, and

RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit Final reports.

8 – Internal Audit Progress Report

The Head of Internal Audit presented the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 
period 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020. 

There had been six Priority 1 recommendations made since the last meeting. All of 
the recommendations were contained within reports which were classified as Part 
Two Agenda Items.

The report contained a statistical summary of the number of audit recommendations 
(134).  It was noted that 129 recommendations had been fully accepted and 5 
recommendations had been partly accepted.  Each of the recommendations had 
been assigned a priority grade 1-3, 1 being major issues and 3 being minor issues.  
25 had been rated Priority 1, 71 had been rated Priority 2 and 33 had been rated 
Priority 3.

The Head of Internal Audit also reported that the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAs) required Internal Audit to be measured in terms of performance.  
The indicators below provided information over the arrangements and effectiveness 
of Internal Audit.

Indicator 2019/20

1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days 
of completion of audit fieldwork. 100%

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 20 
working days of issue of the Draft report. 89%

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days 
of receipt of management response. 100%

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100%

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Thomson, and

RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit progress report.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



9 – Internal Audit Annual Report

The Head of Internal Audit presented the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2019-2020 
to the Committee.  He explained that the purpose of the Annual Report was to meet 
the Head of Internal Audit’s annual reporting requirements set out in the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The Head of Internal Audit’s formal annual 
report presented an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control environment, and:-

a) Included an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control;

b) Disclosed any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the 
qualification, including impairment or restriction in scope;

c) Presented a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, 
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies;

d) Drawn attention to any issues the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly 
relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement;

e) Compared the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned; and

f) Commented on compliance with these standards and the Internal Audit quality 
assurance programme.

The opinion was that the Annual Report provided reasonable assurance that the 
organisations framework of governance, risk management and control predominantly 
operated satisfactorily during 2019-2020. The detailed opinion was that, for the 
systems reviewed, the Council had basically sound systems of control in place, 
although there were weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk, 
these mainly related to areas of contract management and control, leases, 
procurement and certain areas within Community Services. The profile of assurance 
was in Internal Audit’s experience comparable to other Local Authorities, with the 
majority of Council systems receiving Substantial Assurance.

There were however, five areas where only Restricted Assurance could be provided, 
which related to:-

 Maritime Street Landscaping Designs;

 Procurement;

 Cavendish Park Changing Rooms;

 Refuse Collection, Recycling and Street Cleaning 2017-2024; and 

 Maritime Streets Landscaping Works.

There were also two areas where No Assurance could be provided, as follows:-

 Phoenix Business Centre; and

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 Lawson Street.

Weaknesses found as a result of the Internal Audit’s work, together with their 
recommendations for improvement, had been included in their reports to senior 
management and Members.

Additionally, any weaknesses identified through the Annual Governance Statement 
process were recorded separately and reflected the assurance provided from all 
sources both internal and external.

Progress against 2019/20 Annual Plan

A detailed analysis of the current situation regarding the 2019/20 Plan had been 
appended to the Internal Audit Annual Report.

The assessment of auditable areas had identified 74 systems, which covered the 
Council’s operations. The audit coverage achieved in the period, compared to the 
audit plan, is set out in the table below. The difference in planned coverage 
compared to actual mainly related to changes made to the audit plan to 
accommodate requests for an increased number of contract audit reviews (only the 
completed contract audits were included within the statistics) together with additional 
probity exercises.

In addition, significant Housing Benefit Grant Certification testing had been 
completed which was not reflected in these figures, all of which were included within 
regular progress reports issued to the Committee.

Percentage of 
systems covered

Percentage of 
risk covered

2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
Planned 40% 40% 82% 61%

Achieved 32% 45% 66% 76%

The Head of Internal Audit reported that the Fraud Hotline was a well used service 
and presented the following statistics to Members:-

Fraud Hotline Calls

Revenues/
Benefit related Staff Related Other Total

2019/20
(April 19 -
March 20)

32 1 5 38

2018/19
(Full year) 34 3 0 37

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



The following table summarised the assurance levels recorded in final reports 
relating to the years 2019/20 and 2018/19, draft report were not included. The 
majority of Council systems had achieved the level of Substantial Assurance:-

Unqualified
Assurance

Substantial 
Assurance

Restricted
Assurance

No
AssuranceFinal 

Reports Total
No. % No. % No. % No. %

2019/20 27 6 22 14 52 5 19 2 7

2018/19 25 2 8 18 72 5 20 0 0

The conclusions and assurance levels specified for each audit were used to support 
the Council’s governance review arrangements, as required by the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

A summary of the number of audit recommendations made in the Internal Audit Final 
Reports issued during 2019/20, along with the management responses were as 
follows:-

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3
Made 2019/20 71 17 43 11

Fully Accepted 66 16 39 11

Partly Accepted 5 1 4 0

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0

During the year Internal Audit had reported on the implementation of 83 agreed audit 
recommendations made in previous reports. The results were as follows:-

Fully 
Implemented

Not 
Implemented

Overtaken 
By Events

TOTAL

2019/20 29 22 1 52

2018/19 42 25 16 83

For recommendations not fully implemented revised dates had been agreed with 
management for their implementation. Internal Audit would further review progress 
on their implementation during 2020/21.

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Thomson, and

RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2019-2020.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



10 – Internal Audit Annual Plan

The Director of Resources reported that the proposed Annual Plan for 2020-2021 
reflected the impacts of COVID-19 on service delivery.

The purpose of Internal Audit was to provide independent assurance of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls, governance and risk management 
arrangements.

The individual final audit reports provided recommendations for Management to act 
upon and consider in order to achieve improvements where potential weakness or 
risk was identified.

Internal Audit added value to the Council and helped to achieve the Council’s 
objectives by designing an annual audit plan through a systematic and risk-based 
approach.

A significant number of days had been committed to fulfil the statutory obligations 
around the Department of Works and Pensions housing benefit subsidy claim. It was 
felt that this subsidy testing and claims re-performance was best segregated from 
business as usual and did not sit within the Benefits Team. This position may be 
reconsidered if the specific knowledge and skills currently within Internal Audit cannot 
be sustained.

The COVID-19 support package from Government included business support grants 
within a defined scheme and eligibility, and later discretionary business support 
grants, again with eligibility.

When lockdown commenced, there were resource issues, homeworking was not 
available, and suddenly there were millions of pounds and hundreds of grants to 
administer and award.

The Director of Resources requested Internal Audit take on the verification and 
award stages of the newly created grant application process. Internal Audit assisted 
the Director with the design of the process in order to comply with the Government 
requirements.

The volume and complexity of the business grants process had absorbed all of the 
Internal Audit resource from March to July and this would continue until the final 
discretionary grants were awarded in August 2020. The original grant schemes 
remained open but the discretionary scheme now required all of the time available.

Also when lockdown commenced a recruitment process had been underway to add 
further resource into the department to meet the needs of the service; particularly the 
days required for the housing benefit claim assurance work. That process was not 
concluded.

During lockdown, a member of the department obtained alternative employment, 
within the Council, further reducing the resources available.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



The housing benefit assurance work was likely to commence at the end of August 
and that work would require all of the remaining resource. For that reason the gaps 
within the service would be recruited in the autumn rather than immediately as there 
would be no capacity to train or mentor a new starter.

The annual plan reflected the temporary impact from COVID-19 and the shortfall in 
resources.

The areas of high significance within the annual plan had been last audited towards 
the end of the 2019-2020 annual plan and, once resources were established, would 
be audited towards the beginning of the 2021-2022 annual plan. That would minimise 
the gap.

Any major changes proposed to the processes within the areas of high significance 
within the annual plan would be raised with Internal Audit.

The Internal Audit Plan for 2019-2020 had been appended to the report.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree the Internal Audit Plan for 2020-2021.

11 – Restricted Assurance Monitoring 

The Corporate Support Manager submitted a report updating Members on the 
implementation of recommendations from Internal Audit reports where the Audit 
Conclusion was Restricted Assurance.

Internal Audit undertook reviews of Council’s systems as defined in the Annual Audit 
Plan. The audit conclusion may be Restricted Assurance where significant 
weaknesses were identified. This may be as a result of Priority 1 Recommendations or 
because there were a significant number of important issues.

At the last meeting of this Committee there was no Audit Report where the audit 
conclusion was Restricted Assurance.  There were two reports where the audit 
conclusion was no assurance and these were the subject of other reports on the 
Agenda for today’s meeting under Part Two.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To note the Restricted Assurance Monitoring report.

12 – Risk Management

The Corporate Support Manager reported that the Operational and Corporate Risk 
Registers had been submitted to Management Team in March 2020. During the 
COVID-19 lockdown period a number of risks had to be assessed and action taken in 
a short time period. This had been undertaken by the Barrow COVID-19 Strategic 
Co-ordinating Group and it was not appropriate for them to go through the process 
defined in the Risk Policy. Now that we are in the recovery phase it is appropriate to 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



return to the designated process and transfer all relevant risk into the updated 
register.  This would be submitted to Management Team in August,

The Operational and Corporate Risk Registers were attached as appendices to the 
report.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree the Risk Management report.

13 – Local Code of Corporate Governance

The Council produced a Code of Corporate Governance which was reviewed on an 
annual basis.  Guidance for preparing the Code was provided by the Chartered 
Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

CIPFA revised the framework for good governance in the public sector based on the 
International Framework, Good Governance in the Public Sector.

The framework was designed as a reference document for those who developed 
governance codes for the public sector when updating and reviewing their own 
codes. The framework provided a shared understanding of what constituted good 
governance in the public sector. 

Although the core principles had not changed there had been some improvements 
that had been introduced in the last year and these were highlighted in the appendix.

The Code was last submitted to Management Team in March 2020.

A Member stated that there had been a question raised at Council on 15th October, 
2019 by a member of the public and a motion submitted to Council on suicide 
awareness. He requested an update be brought to the next meeting of this 
Committee.

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Callister, and

RESOLVED:- To unanimously endorse the Local Code of Corporate Governance.

14 – Update on Local Audit

The Director of Resources report provided a summary of the local audit position in 
relation to the three financial years spanning 2018-2021.

She reported that Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement for 
2018-2019 had been signed off in September 2019 rather than July 2019.

This Council was not alone in that respect and there were a number of emerging 
issues that prompted the delay; in summary greater assurance around key risks was 
required beyond the levels previously expected. Again, these assurances were 
across the sector and not just for this authority.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



An update from Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) which set out the 
situation in more detail had been attached as an appendix to the report. In summary 
there were nearly 80 audits to be concluded at the end of January 2020; the 
increased assurance requirements were an additional burden (to the Council and to 
the auditor); expert resources were limited (to the Council and to the auditor); and 
planning the audit was going to be critical all round.

Grant Thornton had written to the Council to provide a company view and as the 
Council’s Appointed Auditors.

The Finance Department would work with the Audit Team to ensure that the 
planning, timing and resources were used to their best effect.

The additional assurance work performed towards the end of the 2018-2019 audit 
would need to be repeated and revisited; there were also areas of work that needed 
to be more in-depth for the 2019-2020 audit and there were new requirements to 
incorporate into the annual audit.

The scale fee for 2019-2020 was £39,362 (this was the tendered fee) and the 
increase of £10,000 had been agreed with Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA).

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Callister, and

RESOLVED:- To note the Local Audit Update.

15 – External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Gareth Kelly and Chris Whittingham from Grant Thornton presented the External 
Audit Progress Report and Sector Update report to Members.  The report provided 
the Committee with details of the Auditors progress in delivering their responsibilities 
as External Auditors. This also included a summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that may be relevant to the Council as well as a number of challenge 
questions in respect of those emerging issues which the Committee may wish to 
consider.

Grant Thornton had closed their offices on 16th March, 2020 and were now working 
remotely during the accounts audit. Although there were some audit tasks which 
were best undertaken in person, he stated that Grant Thornton would be able to 
complete the majority of the audit remotely. This was however likely to make the 
audit process longer. They continued to work closely with the Council’s Finance 
Team to make this different way of working as efficient as possible. There may need 
to be further changes to planned audit timings due to COVID-19.

A table of progress as at July 2020 had been presented as follows:-

2019/20 Deliverables  Planned Date        Status

Fee Letter
Confirming audit fee for 2019/20      April 2019         Complete

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the
Audit Committee setting out our proposed approach in order      July 2020         Complete
to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements 
and a Conclusion on the Council’s Value for Money arrangements.

Audit Findings Report
The Audit Findings Report will be reported on completion      TBC         Not yet due
of our financial statements and Value for Money audits.

Auditor’s Report
This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual      TBC         Not yet due
governance statement and value for money conclusion.

Annual Audit Letter
This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.     TBC         Not yet due

Members of the Audit Committee were reminded that they could find further useful 
material on the Grant Thornton website where there was a section dedicated to their 
work in the Public Sector.

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Callister, and

RESOLVED:- To note the External Audit Progress report and Sector Update.

16 – External Audit Annual Plan

Gareth Kelly from Grant Thornton reported that the External Audit Plan for the year 
ended 31st March, 2020 was complete and had been attached as an appendix to the 
report.  An addendum was also attached which focused on COVID-19.

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Callister, and

RESOLVED:- To note the External Audit Plan for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

17 – Consultation Model Member Code of Conduct

The Monitoring Officer reported on 30th January, 2019 the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life had published a Local Government Ethical Standards Report on the 
subject of Ethical standards in Local Government. This had been reported to Audit 
Committee on 25th July 2019. The report commented that there was considerable 
variation in the length, quality and clarity of codes of conduct which created 
confusion among members of the public and among Councillors who represent more 
than one tier of local authority. It was considered that many codes of conduct failed 
to address adequately important areas such as social media use and bullying and 
harassment. One of their recommendations was that the Local Government 
Association should create an updated model code of conduct, in consultation with 
representative bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers of local government.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



The Local Government Association was now consulting on a draft model Member 
Code of Conduct. The draft and consultations questionnaire had been attached as 
appendices to the report. The Model Member Code was designed by the LGA to aid 
members in all tiers of local government model the behaviours and high standards 
that anyone would expect from a person holding public office. It also articulated the 
behaviour which fell below the standards that would be expected of council 
members. It was designed to help set a framework for public and councillor 
interaction, emphasising the importance of civility and that councillors should be 
protected from bullying, intimidation and abuse.

The LGA was inviting comment on the consultation draft and would particularly like to 
know if it stood up to the new ways of working that had been introduced and whether 
it gives enough of a steer on social media and online activity.

The Council’s current code, which was attached as an appendix to the report, had 
been adopted in 2012 following collaboration with the Cumbria Authorities, including 
County, Districts and the Parish Councils when a common code had been agreed 
across Cumbria. The County Monitoring Officers had the consultation review of the 
code on their agenda and were to provide a County wide Monitoring Officer response 
to the consultation.

It was moved by Councillor Thomson and seconded by Councillor Callister, to amend 
Recommendation (1) to include to request the Monitoring Officer to look at updating 
Barrow Borough Council’s existing Member Code of Conduct and take to Member 
Training Group and then Full Council, and

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed:-

1. To note the consultation Model Member Code of Conduct and provide feedback 
and request the Monitoring Officer to look at updating Barrow Borough 
Council’s existing Member Code of Conduct and take to Member Training 
Group and then Full Council; and

2. To note that the Monitoring Officer was liaising with the Cumbria wide 
Monitoring Officer’s Group to provide a Cumbria Monitoring Officer response.

18 – Going Concern

The Director of Resources reported that the Council was required to assess and 
determine that it was appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going 
concern basis.  The review should take account of all available information about the 
future, which was at least, but not limited to the next twelve months from the end of 
the reporting period.

The accounts of the Council for the period 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020 would 
be prepared on a going concern basis.  This basis assumed that the Council would 
be able to realise its assets and liabilities in the normal course of business and that it 
would continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Management Team considered the significant factors affecting the going concern 
assessment and determined that the going concern concept does apply to the 
Council.

On 13th July, 2020, Management Team considered the implications of COVID-19 
and updated the assessment where significant impacts needed to be recognised.

Management Team agreed that the going concern concept still applied.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree with the Going Concern assessment.

19 – Accounting Policies

The Director of Resources reported that the Council’s Accounting Policies had been 
reviewed to ensure that they remained relevant, current and reflected best practice.

It was noted that it was the responsibility of the Director of Resources to select 
suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently.  Any significant changes in 
accounting policies were reported in the Statement of Accounts. 

There were changes introduced by the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom each year and these were assessed against the 
Council’s policies upon implementation:-

 Statutory adjustment explanations – covered by existing policies
 Improvements to the financial statements - covered by existing policies
 Amendments to Landfill Allowances – no impact
 Accounting treatment for the apprenticeship levy – covered by existing policies
 Financial instrument prepayment amendments - no impact
 Lender option borrower option clarifications - no impact
 Group account amendments – no impact

Changes to the Accounting Policies had been highlighted in the appendix to the 
report.  Any further revisions coming from the closedown process would be reported 
with the Statement of Accounts at the Audit and Governance Committee in 
November 2020.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree with the Accounting Policies for the Council’s 
2019-2020 Statement of Accounts.  

20 – Assurance

The Director of Resources reported that the Appointed Auditor had requested that 
the Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee explain how assurance from 
management was obtained and the request was attached as an appendix to the 
report. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



The Chairman’s response was also appended to the report.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To unanimously endorse the Chairman’s response.

21 – 2019-2020 Accounts Update

The Director of Resources provided an update relating to the closure of the accounts 
for 2019-2020.

Preparations for closing the 2019-2020 accounts and producing the assurance and 
governance documents began in March 2020.

Accountants attended year-end training/briefing sessions regarding accounting 
requirements and changes.

The timetable was published for Managers and other Officers who provide 
information required for closing 2019-2020.

The COVID-19 support package from Government included business support grants 
within a defined scheme and eligibility, and later discretionary business support 
grants.

When lockdown commenced, there were resource issues, homeworking was not 
available, and suddenly there were millions of pounds and hundreds of grants to 
administer and award.

The Director of Resources requested the Finance Department take on the 
compilation stage of the newly created grant application process.

The volume and complexity of the business grants process had absorbed all of the 
Accountancy resource from March to June.

The original grant schemes remain open but the Finance Department was 
intentionally excluded from the discretionary grant scheme process as the accounts 
closedown was a solid two month programme.

The Accountancy Services Manager retired mid-April and it had not been possible to 
recruit a replacement as yet. Significant experience and knowledge was lost with any 
long-serving officer and due to COVID-19 and the business grants process, there 
was very little opportunity for the transfer of knowledge.

The Financial Services Manager was temporarily covering the Accountancy Services 
Manager management responsibilities and aspects of day-to-day work, but that was 
not intentional as both roles were fully occupied. It was hoped that recruitment would 
recommence in August 2020. An interim resource was assisting with the year-end 
closedown but the remaining pressures of covering the senior vacancy was a 
challenge.

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



There was also a financial role in the major bids being developed, plus the new and 
developing COVID-19 emergency funding grant submissions and the 2020-2021 
budget revision to manage in light of COVID-19. The need for additional resource, 
particularly for the major projects, has been established.

The accounts would be closed by the 31st August, 2020 which was in line with the 
COVID-19 extension of statutory dates.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To note the 2019-2020 accounts update.

Local Government Act 1972 – Excluded Item

It was moved by Councillor Assouad and seconded by Councillor Callister to move 
into Part Two, and

RESOLVED:- That the items to be taken in Part Two of the Agenda be dealt with 
following the exclusion of the press and the public.

22 – Internal Audit Report Updates

The Director of Resources provided an update relating to Internal Audit final reports 
presented at the Audit Committee meeting held on 18th December, 2019.

The report contained final reports relating to existing leases for properties owned by 
the Council.  The report also highlighted a further issue relating to the Pulse Soccer 
contract.

The Commercial Estate Manager and Director of People and Place provided updates 
regarding the leases.

It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To consider the updates and any further action.

23 – Internal Audit Final Reports

The Head of Internal Audit reported that Internal Audit had completed a number of 
audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan which was based on a risk 
assessment of the internal control environment.  This report presented four Internal 
Audit Final Reports.

Members considered the reports and raised questions with the Head of Internal 
Audit.

It was moved by Councillor Thomson and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and

RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit Final reports.

The meeting closed at 4.17 pm.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
1 October 2020

Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Work Plan sets out the business of the Audit and Governance Committee to 

provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 
covered.

1.2 The Work Plan is presented for information.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Work Plan.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Work Plan (Appendix 1) is presented at each Audit and Governance 

Committee meeting to provide a forward plan of business.

3.2 The Work Plan is intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 
covered.  The Work Plan reflects the changes to the timeframe for closing the 
2019-2020 accounts and is the Work Plan specifically for 2020-2021.

3.3 Previous practice has been to maintain a rolling Work Plan but the rescheduling 
of business in this year has demonstrated that the Work Plan would be best 
tailored to each year.

3.4 Officers shall prepare the 2021-2022 Work Plan for the meeting scheduled for 
March 2021 to continue to provide a forward plan.

3.5 The Work Plan associates the reports that will be presented against the terms of 
reference along with the reporting officer and the scheduled committee meeting.

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



3.6 Where a report is not required that will be noted in the covering report.

3.7 For this meeting there is no business to report regarding Restricted Assurance 
Monitoring (Item 18) and the appointed auditor will provide a verbal update in 
place of a report at Item 7.

3.8 A new item added to the Work Plan is Item 28 which is an annual report of the 
Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee; this is included to summarise the 
business for the year and to demonstrate the effectiveness of the Committee. 

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The Committee does not fulfil 
the terms of reference 
assigned by Full Council.

The Council cannot 
demonstrate good 
governance.

Audit and Governance 
Committee work plan.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2020-2021

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2020-2021

Last updated 22 September 2020

Terms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report Meeting

   Jul Oct Nov Mar
Audit Activity
1. To consider the head of Internal Audit’s annual report 

and opinion, and a summary of Internal Audit activity 
(actual and planned) and the level of assurance it can 
give over the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Annual report 

2. To consider summaries of specific Internal Audit 
reports.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Final reports    

3. To consider the annual Internal Audit plan.
Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Annual plan 

4. To consider reports dealing with the management and 
performance of the Internal Audit provider.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

5. To consider reports from Internal Audit on agreed 
recommendations not implemented within reasonable 
timescale.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Progress report    

6. To consider the external auditor’s annual letter and 
relevant reports.

Appointed 
Auditor

Annual audit letter

Certification of grants





7. To consider specific reports as agreed with the external 
auditor.

Appointed 
Auditor

Progress report and sector 
update    

8. To comment on the scope and depth of external audit 
work and to ensure it gives value for money.

Appointed 
Auditor Annual plan 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2020-2021

Last updated 22 September 2020

Terms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report Meeting

   Jul Oct Nov Mar
9. To consider the appointment of the external auditor 

where appropriate.
Director of 
Resources Appointed auditor report – cyclical

Regulatory/Standards Framework
10.To maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution in 

respect of contract standing order, financial regulations.
Director of 
Resources Annual review 

11.To promote and maintain high standards of conduct for 
elected and co-opted members in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of the Localism Act.

Head of 
Legal and 

Governance

Standards arrangements

Independent Person 
appointment 



12.To determine whether a member of the Council or a 
member of a town or parish council within the Borough 
has failed to comply with the relevant Code of Conduct. 
Where it finds that a failure to comply with the code of 
conduct has occurred to determine what action, if any, 
to take.

Head of 
Legal and 

Governance
Report as required

13.To determine any request for a dispensation under s.33 
of the Localism Act 2011.

Head of 
Legal and 

Governance

Report as required unless otherwise determined 
under delegation

14.To review any issue referred to it by the Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources, Monitoring Officer or 
any Council body.

Various Various as required

15.To monitor the effective development and operation of 
risk management and corporate governance in the 
Council. 

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

Risk management    

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2020-2021

Last updated 22 September 2020

Terms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report Meeting

   Jul Oct Nov Mar

16.To monitor Council policies on the antifraud and anti-
corruption strategy and the Council’s complaints 
process.

Director of 
Resources

Head of 
Legal and 
Governance

Annual review (antifraud)

Complaints and compliments 
report

Local Government 
Ombudsman letter









17.To approve the production of the authority’s Annual 
Governance Statement and to recommend its adoption.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement

Final Annual Governance 
Statement





18.To consider the Council’s arrangement for corporate 
governance and agreeing necessary actions to ensure 
compliance with best practice.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

Code of corporate 
governance

Restricted assurance 
monitoring

  





19.To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and 
other published standards and controls.

Head of 
Legal and 
Governance

Best practice review

Guidance on code of conduct 
and social media





P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2020-2021

Last updated 22 September 2020

Terms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report Meeting

   Jul Oc
t

No
v

Ma
r

Accounts

20.To review and approve the annual Statement of 
Accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate 
accounting policies have been followed and whether 
there are concerns arising from the financial statements 
or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention 
of the Council.

Director of 
Resources

Going concern
Accounting policies
Assurance arrangements

Statement of Accounts
Letter of representation








21.To consider the external auditor’s report to those 
charged with governance on issues arising from the 
audit of the accounts.

Appointed 
Auditor Audit findings report 

Others
22.To note the Audit and Governance Committee terms of 

reference.
Director of 
Resources Terms of reference 

23.To note the Audit and Governance Committee work 
plan.

Director of 
Resources Work plan    

24.To note the External Audit fees. Director of 
Resources Audit fees 

25.To consider the effectiveness of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

26.Review of Borough and Parish councillor registers of 
interests

Head of 
Legal and 
Governance

Annual report 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2020-2021

Last updated 22 September 2020

Terms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report Meeting

   Jul Oc
t

No
v

Ma
r

27.Review of employee gifts and hospitality
Head of 
Legal and 
Governance

Annual report 

28.Annual report of the Chair of the Audit and Governance 
Committee Various Annual report 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
1st October 2020

Internal Audit Final Reports

 
Report from:  Head of Internal Audit

Report Author: Head of Internal Audit

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment.

1.2 The final reports completed since the last meeting of the Committee are 
presented in this report.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit final reports.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 This report presents the Internal Audit final reports completed since the last 

meeting of the Committee.

3.2 There is one final report for presentation.  All recommendations have been 
accepted by management unless otherwise stated.

3.3 19-13 Payroll, Appendix 1; substantial assurance.  This report contains one 
important issue and two minor issues.

3.4 The assurance levels are: 

 None – control is weak, causing the system to be vulnerable to error and abuse. 
 Restricted – significant weaknesses have been identified in the system of 

control, which put the system objectives at risk. 
 Substantial – while there is a reasonable system of control, there are 

weaknesses, which may put the system objectives at risk.

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



 Unqualified – there is an adequate system of control designed to achieve the 
system objectives.

3.5 The recommendation levels assigned to issues identified are: 

 Priority 1 – major issues that Internal Audit considers need to be brought to the 
attention of senior management. 

 Priority 2 – important issues which should be addressed by management in their 
areas of responsibility. 

 Priority 3 – minor issues which provide scope for operational improvement. 
 Previous issues – are issues identified in a previous audit report that have not 

been entirely implemented at the time of this latest audit.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Internal controls are 
inadequate.

Compliance cannot be 
demonstrated and 
assurance cannot be 
given.

Internal Audit annual 
plan.

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



Contact Officers 
K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Payroll

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



September 2020
Page 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT 19-13

PAYROLL

Executive Summary

Introduction

Salaries and expenses of Council Officers and Members’ allowances and expenses 
are administered by the Financial Services Department and HR Department, utilising a 
Frontier Payroll System. 

The December 2019 monthly payroll involved employee costs of approximately 
£531,000 with net payments of £404,000 to 290 Staff and Members.

Audit Objectives
An audit of this system forms part of the agreed 2019/20 
programme.  The audit objectives were to evaluate and test 
the operation of internal controls over the Payroll function.  
The scope and objectives of the audit were discussed and 
agreed in advance with the Financial Services Manager.

Audit work included a control evaluation of the system design 
and testing of the operation of key controls.  In addition, 
Internal Audit perform routine quarterly checks on payroll 
control account reconciliations to confirm that these are prepared appropriately by 
Council staff.

Audit Conclusion – Substantial Assurance
As a result of the audit we have concluded that while there is a basically sound 
system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk.  We 
have made one Priority 2 recommendation, which relates to the ensuring that all staff 
book accommodation in accordance with Council Policy.
In addition we have made two Priority 3 recommendations which concern the 
Financial Services Manager ensuring:

 all expense claims are only reimbursed when accompanied by supporting receipts; 
and

 P11D forms are produced in sufficient time prior to the deadline set by HMRC to 
ensure submission is properly completed prior to the HMRC deadline.

Internal Audit also reviewed the three outstanding agreed recommendations made in 
Audit Report 18-13, dated February 2019 and confirmed all recommendations had 
been implemented.

Key Points

Substantial Assurance

One important issue

Two minor issues

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Barrow Borough Council        Final Report Number 19-13

September 2020
Page 2

In addition, Internal Audit reviewed the two outstanding agreed recommendations 
made in Audit Report 17-13, dated January 2018 and also confirmed that both 
recommendations had been implemented. 

Management Response
We have received a constructive management response from the Human Resources 
Manager and the Financial Services Manager, accepting each of the 
recommendations.

Acknowledgement
Internal Audit would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
review.

Page 36

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
1st October 2020

Internal Audit Progress Report

 
Report from:  Head of Internal Audit

Report Author: Head of Internal Audit

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment.

1.2 The progress report for the period 1 April 2020 to 18 September 2020 is 
presented in this report.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit progress report.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 This report presents the Internal Audit progress report for the period 1 April 2020 

to 18 September 2020.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 

Page 37

Agenda Item 10



Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Internal controls are 
inadequate.

Compliance cannot be 
demonstrated and 
assurance cannot be 
given.

Internal Audit annual 
plan.

Contact Officers 
K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Internal Audit

Progress Report

Page 38

Agenda Item 10



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

April to October 2020

2020/21

Page 39

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



2

CONTENTS Page

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 4

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 5

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS 6

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 7

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 10

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 11

7. PERFORMANCE 12

8. DRAFT REPORTS ISSUED 12

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 13

Page 40

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Purpose
The purpose of the report is to update Members of the Council’s Audit Committee on:

 Internal Audit work performed up to 18th September 2020, including final reports 
issued relating to a previous reporting period; and

 Significant issues that have arisen during this period as a result of our work.

Content
The information is presented in the following schedules:
1. A Statistical Summary of Recommendations

This schedule includes all audit recommendations to which Council 
management have responded between 1st April and 18th September 2019.  The 
figures are analysed according to the ‘priority’ of the recommendations, and the 
extent to which each has been accepted by management for action.

2. Accepted Priority 1 Recommendations

This schedule provides details of all major recommendations which have been 
accepted by management.

3. Rejected Recommendations

This schedule provides details of major and significant (i.e. Priority 1 and 
Priority 2) recommendations, which have been rejected by Council 
Management.

4. Audit Coverage

Details of audit assignments carried out in the period, including any checks on 
external partner organisations.

5. Classifications of Assurance and Recommendations

An explanation of the classifications used for prioritising recommendations and 
assessing levels of assurance.

Page 41

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



4

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS
The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations we have made 
in our final reports issued up to 18th September 2020; analysed by their priority, 
including whether accepted by management.

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3

Made 3 0 1 2

Fully Accepted 3 0 1 2

Partly Accepted 0 - - -

Not Accepted 0 - - -

Page 42

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



5

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS
There have no Priority One recommendations made since the previous Audit 
Committee.  

Page 43

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



6

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 PRIORITY ONE RECOMMENDATIONS

There have been no rejected Priority One recommendations during the reporting 
period.

3.2 PRIORITY TWO RECOMMENDATIONS

There have been no rejected Priority Two recommendations during the reporting 
period.

Page 44

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



7

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE:

APRIL – SEPTEMBER 2020

Report 
Number Audit Assignment

System 
Significance 

Band
Status Assurance

ANNUAL AUDITS
20-01 Income Collection 1
20-02 Housing Benefits 1
20-03 Council Tax & Council Tax Support 1
20-04 Business Rates (NNDR) 1
20-05 Risk Management 1
20-06 Cash Floats/Receipting Controls -
20-08 Fraud and Corruption Survey -
20-09 Performance Management 2
20-10 Budgetary Control 2
20-11 Treasury Management 2
20-12 Car Park Meter Income 2
20-13 Payroll (incl Expenses) 2
20-14 Accounts Receivable 2
20-15 Corporate Control/Governance 2

20-16 Main Accounting System and 
Periodic Controls 2

20-17 Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2

20-18 Accounts Payable 2

20-19 Housing Rents 2

20-20 Standing Orders/Financial 
Regs/Council Plans & Policies 2

20-21 Housing Maintenance (Day to day 
repairs) 2

20-22 NFI responsibilities - Ongoing
20-24 Benefit Certification - Commenced

Page 45

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



8

Report 
Number Audit Assignment

System 
Significance 

Band
Status Assurance

COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 
AND MAYOR’S ACCOUNT

- Hawcoat -

- Abbotsvale - Commenced

- Dalton Community Association -

20-23 Mayor’s Account -

IT ENVIRONMENT AUDITS

20-07 IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW

It should be noted that between April and September 2020 Internal Audit undertook 
almost exclusively the process of evaluating and processing COVID-19 Support 
Grants, which has clearly impacted on the delivery of coverage.  See table below 
detailing the number and value of grants applications processed and paid, for each of 
the different funding schemes.

COVID-19 Grant 
Scheme

Number of 
Claims paid

Value paid
£

Ineligible 
applications 
processed

Total
processed

Small Business 
Retail, Hospitality 
& Leisure

1,014 11,447,500 186 1,200

Discretionary 
(Round 1)

61 280,000 93 154

Discretionary 
(Round 2)

18 77,500 43 61

Total 1,093 11,805,000 322 1,415

Page 46

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



9

Fraud Hotline Calls
Revenues/

Benefit related
Staff Related Other Total

2020/21
(April – 
September)

2 0 6 8

2019/20
(Full year)

32 1 5 38

Page 47

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



10

5. CONTRACT AUDIT

Report 
Number Audit Assignment Status Assurance/ 

Comment

CR119 Crematorium rebuild Ongoing Stages 1-3 findings 
issued

CR120 Building Cleaning Information awaited

CR123 Harding Rise Ongoing Stage 1&2 findings 
issued

CR132 Portland Walk Car Park 
Maintenance Ongoing Stage 2&3 findings 

issued

CR133 Insurance Information 
awaited -

CR134 Public Conveniences etc-
Cleaning Contract

Information 
awaited -

Page 48

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



11

6.CLASSIFICATIONS
6.1   Classification of Assurance Levels

At the conclusion of each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance, 
which we consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The 
following classification of assurance levels has been adopted:

Level Definition
1. Unqualified Assurance The controls appear to be consistently applied.

2. Substantial Assurance Evidence was identified to suggest that the 
level of non-compliance with controls may put 
some of the system objectives at risk.

3. Restricted Assurance The level of non-compliance identified places 
the system objectives at risk.

4. None Significant non-compliance with controls was 
identified leaving the system vulnerable to 
error and abuse.

6.2 Priority of Recommendations

Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels: -

Priority 1 Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior 
management.

Priority 2 Important issues which should be addressed by management in their area 
of responsibility.

Priority 3 Detailed issues of a relatively minor nature.

Page 49

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



12

7. PERFORMANCE
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs) require Internal Audit to be 
measured in terms of performance.  The indicators below provide information over the 
arrangements and effectiveness of Internal Audit.

Indicator 2020/21

1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days 
of completion of audit fieldwork. 100%

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 
20 working days of issue of the Draft report. 0%

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days 
of receipt of management response. 100%

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100%

8. Draft Reports issued
Ref Audit Date issued
19-06 Cash Floats and Receipting Controls 28 July 2020

19-14 Accounts Receivable 28 July 2020

19-18 Accounts Payable 28 July 2020

Page 50

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



13

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS

Recommendations Previous 
Recommendations

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3
Total Date Issued

 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
1 October 2020

Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Debbie Storr

Wards:  Not applicable

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 That the Audit and Governance Committee receive the Local Government 

Ombudsman Annual Report 2019/20.

2.0 Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive and 
note the report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 Attached to this report Members will find a copy of the Local Government 

Ombudsman Annual Review letter 2019/20 (Appendix 1). The outcomes of the 
complaints received are broken down into total numbers received (Appendix 2), 
complaints decided to undertake an investigation and the number upheld.

3.2 During this reporting period the Local Government Ombudsman made a decision 
in 1 case.  In comparison 1 decision was made in 2018/19 and 0 decisions in 
2017/18.

3.3 For 2019/20 1 case was upheld and the Council ensured the appropriate action 
taken in compliance with the recommendations made by the ombudsman. The 
compliance with the ombudsman recommendations rate for this period is 
reported as 100%. The annual review findings are also available on the Local 
Government Ombudsman website.

3.4 The case that was upheld was a planning matter where there was avoidable 
delay and unclear communication by the Council in dealing with planning 
conditions which caused confusion and put the complainant to avoidable time 
and trouble. The remedy actions included an apology and other actions the 
Council was to take to progress the matter which are being complied with.

Page 53

Agenda Item 11



3.5 The Council operates a two stage complaints process before matters are 
referred to the LGO, a separate report on this agenda provides an update on the 
Council’s compliments and complaints process.

4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note.

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins delivery of the Council’s priorities

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 Not applicable

Legal 
7.1.2 No legal issues identified

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable
Risk

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Reputational risk as a result of 
adverse complaints

The reputation of the 
council is diminished

Regular review of the 
complaints policy 

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review Letter
2 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review – appendix 

complaints received, decided and complaints compliance

Background Documents Available
None 

Page 54

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

 

22 July 2020 
 
By email 
 
Ms Plum 
Executive Director 
Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 
 
Dear Ms Plum  
 
Annual Review letter 2020 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending            

31 March 2020. Given the exceptional pressures under which local authorities have been 

working over recent months, I thought carefully about whether it was still appropriate to send 

you this annual update. However, now, more than ever, I believe that it is essential that the 

public experience of local services is at the heart of our thinking. So, I hope that this 

feedback, which provides unique insight into the lived experience of your Council’s services, 

will be useful as you continue to deal with the current situation and plan for the future. 

Complaint statistics 

This year, we continue to place our focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be 

learned from them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and 

have made several changes over recent years to improve the data we capture and report. 

We focus our statistics on these three key areas: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an 

authority’s actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated. A 

focus on how often things go wrong, rather than simple volumes of complaints provides a 

clearer indicator of performance. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things 

right when faults have caused injustice. Our recommendations try to put people back in the 

position they were before the fault and we monitor authorities to ensure they comply with our 

recommendations. Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a 

compliance rate below 100% should scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply 

and identify any learning. 

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority - We want to encourage the early 

resolution of complaints and to credit authorities that have a positive and open approach to 

Page 55

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



resolving complaints. We recognise cases where an authority has taken steps to put things 

right before the complaint came to us. The authority upheld the complaint and we agreed 

with how it offered to put things right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of 

authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, 

District Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

This data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a 

copy of this letter on 29 July 2020, and our Review of Local Government Complaints. For 

further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website. 

Resources to help you get it right 

There are a range of resources available that can support you to place the learning from 

complaints, about your authority and others, at the heart of your system of corporate 

governance. Your council’s performance launched last year and puts our data and 

information about councils in one place. Again, the emphasis is on learning, not numbers. 

You can find the decisions we have made, public reports we have issued, and the service 

improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as 

previous annual review letters.  

I would encourage you to share the tool with colleagues and elected members; the 

information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems 

and is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions. 

Earlier this year, we held our link officer seminars in London, Bristol, Leeds and Birmingham. 

Attended by 178 delegates from 143 local authorities, we focused on maximising the impact 

of complaints, making sure the right person is involved with complaints at the right time, and 

how to overcome common challenges.  

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities 

and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. During the year, 

we delivered 118 courses, training more than 1,400 people. This is 47 more courses than we 

delivered last year and included more training to adult social care providers than ever before. 

To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 56

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/20                                                               

 

 

 

Complaints upheld 

  

100% of complaints we 
investigated were upheld. 

This compares to an average of 
45% in similar authorities. 

 
 

1                          
upheld decision 

 
Statistics are based on a total of 1 
detailed investigation for the period 
between 1 April 2019 to 31 March 

2020 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

 

 

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority 

  

In 0% of upheld cases we found 
the authority had provided a 
satisfactory remedy before the 
complaint reached the 
Ombudsman.  

This compares to an average of 
20% in similar authorities. 

 

0                      
satisfactory remedy decisions 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 1 
detailed investigation for the period 
between 1 April 2019 to 31 March 

2020 

 
 

100% 

0% 

Page 57

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



RECEIVED
Reference Authority Category Received

18009794 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 02 Apr 2019

19001406 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 26 Apr 2019

19004224 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 14 Jun 2019

19005569 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Benefits & Tax 03 Jul 2019

19006987 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Corporate & Other Services 28 Oct 2019

19008224 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Corporate & Other Services 15 Aug 2019

19018596 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Benefits & Tax 05 Feb 2020

DECIDED
Reference Authority Category Decided Decision Decison Reason Remedy Service 

improvem18009794 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 08/05/19 Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - referred to BinJ     

18016242 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Planning & Development 10/12/19 Upheld mal & inj

Apology,Procedure or policy change/review,New appeal/review or 

reconsidered decision,Provide information/advice,Provide services
The 

Council 

agreed to 19001406 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 13/06/19 Closed after initial enquiries Not warranted by alleged mal/service failure     

19004224 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 22/07/19 Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - referred to BinJ     

19005569 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Benefits & Tax 03/07/19 Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - advice given     

19006987 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Corporate & Other Services 22/01/20 Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - referred to BinJ     

19008224 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Corporate & Other Services 11/10/19 Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - referred to BinJ     

19018596 Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Benefits & Tax 05/02/20 Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - advice given     

COMPLIANCE
No compliance data recorded during the period

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
1 October 2020

Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and 
Complaints received during 2019/20

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Debbie Storr

Wards:  All

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Feedback is very important to help us better understand the customer’s needs 

and concerns and can help identify possible avenues of service improvement.  
This report presents an update to Members on the number of complaints and 
compliments received during 2019/20.

2.0 Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee receive and 
note the report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The complaints process has been reviewed a number of times over the years, 

and whilst the LGO annual report is presented regularly to members, complaints 
and compliments generally have not.

3.2 If members wish, then it is intended that a regular report will be presented to the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  All complaints and compliments are 
managed and recorded by the Democratic Services Team. It is intended that 
quarterly reporting on complaints and compliments will be presented to MT and 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

3.3 During 2019/20 there were 52 stage 1 complaints received compared to 62 in the 
previous financial year.  The reasons for the complaints are wide and varied and 
there is no underlying trend in those two years.  Appendix 1 shows the 
complaints received by service area for both stage one and stage 2 (appeal) 
complaints. 

Page 61

Agenda Item 12



3.4 The complaints system changed in March 2019 and went from three stages to 
two stages prior to any referral to the LGO. 73% of complaints received were 
answered within the 10 working day target for stage 1 complaints, and 100% 
were answered within the 20 working target for stage 2 complaints. The team will 
continue to work with Officers to increase the percentage against the target at 
stage 1.

3.5 Appendix 1 also shows a more detailed breakdown of the stage 1 complaints by 
Department and also by complaint category.  The data collated  is useful to 
identify trends and assist with service improvements. No underlying trends have 
been identified during 2019/20.

3.6 During this reporting period 7 compliments were received and noted corporately. 
Details of service area are shown in Appendix 2.  This does not include the 
visitor comments at e.g. the Dock Museum where there were 244 positive visitor 
comments for the period August 2019-20 and 11 negative comments mostly 
regarding no access to the bottom floor. Moving forward we are requesting 
service areas to ensure that any compliments received are logged corporately for 
future reporting.

 
3.7 The Annual Review Letter from the Ombudsman is a separate item on this 

agenda.  There have been no public interest reports received.

3.8 Members are asked to receive the report.

4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note.

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
6.1 Links to the Council priorities in relation to excellence

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 Not applicable

Legal 
7.1.2 Not applicable

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable

Page 62

Agenda Item 12



Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Reputational risk as a result of 
complaints

The reputation of the 
council is diminished

Regular review of the 
complaints policy and 
proactive monitoring of 
complaints

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk/jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Complaints Data 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020
2 Details of compliments logged

Background Documents Available
None 

Page 63

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer
June 2020

APPENDIX 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL COMPLAINTS STATISTICS 2019/2020

Below is a table showing the total number of complaints received during 2019/20 (April, 2019 
– March, 2020).

Complaints Table 2019/2020

Quarter 1
1st Apr 2019 – 
30th June 2019

Quarter 2
1st Jul 2019 – 
30th Sept 2019

Quarter 3
1st Oct 2019 – 
31st Dec 2019

Quarter 4
1st Jan 2020 – 
31st Mar 2020

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints

18 12 12 10

Total 
Number of 

Appeal 
Complaints

1 4 2 0

A table showing the number of complaints received in 2018/19 during the same period 
for comparison is as follows:-

Comparison Table 2018/2019

Quarter 1
1st  Apr 2018 – 
30th June 2018

Quarter 2
1st July 2018 
– 30th Sept 

2018

Quarter 3
1st Oct 2018 – 
31st Dec 2018

Quarter 4
1st Jan 2019 – 
31st Mar 2019

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints

20 15 15 12

Total 
Number of 

Stage 2 
Complaint

4 1 3 0

Total 
Number of 

Stage 3 
Complaints

2 0 2 0

Page 65

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer
June 2020

STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2019/2020

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints

Upheld Not 
Upheld

Partly 
Upheld

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn

Streetcare 12 8 4 0 0 0
Council 

Tax/Housing 
Benefit 

25 5 16 4 0 0

Housing 5 2 2 1 0 0
Markets 1 0 1 0 0 0
Parking 1 0 1 0 0 0
Planning 4 0 2 1 1 0

Public 
Protection

3 0 2 1 0 0

Regeneration 1 0 1 0 0 0
TOTALS 52 15 29 7 1 0

PERCENTAGE OF STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS UPHELD, NOT 
UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN

Upheld
 29%

Not Upheld
 56%

Partly Upheld
 13%

Rejected/Withd
rawn
 0%

Ongoing
 2%

Stage 1 2019/20

Page 66

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer
June 2020

APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2019/2020 

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints

Upheld Not 
Upheld

Partly 
Upheld

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn

Council 
Tax/Housing 

Benefit

4 0 4 0 0 0

Markets 1 0 1 0 0 0
Streetcare 1 1 0 0 0 0

Regeneration 1 0 1 0 0 0
TOTAL 7 1 6 0 0 0

PERCENTAGE OF APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS UPHELD, 
NOT UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN

Upheld
 14%

Not Upheld
 86%

Partly Upheld
 0%

Rejected/Withd
rawn
 0%

Ongoing
 0%

Appeal Stage 2019/20

Page 67

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



Sharron Rushton, Democratic Services Officer
June 2020

COMPLIMENTS BY DEPARTMENT 2019/2020

Below is a table showing the total number of compliments received during 2019/20 (April, 2019 – 
March, 2020).

Compliments Table 2019/2020

Department Total Number of Compliments
Council Tax/Housing Benefit 3

Parks 1
Property Services 1

Streetcare 2

PERCENTAGE OF COMPLIMENTS

Streetcare
 29%

Council 
Tax/Housing 

Benefit
 43%

Parks
 14%

Property 
Services

 14%

Compliments 2019/20

Page 68

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



APPENDIX 2

Compliments - 2019/20

Date Department
3 May 2019 Housing Benefit
9 May 2019 Housing Benefit
14 May 2019 Democratic Services and Parks
1 August 2019 Streetcare
21 November 2019 Council Tax
11 December 2019 Council Tax
26 January 2020 Property Services

Page 69

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow Borough Council 
Audit and Governance Committee 

1 October 2020
Standards – Best Practice Recommendations

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Debbie Storr

Wards:  Not applicable

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 To consider an update with regard to the Best Practice recommendations put 

forward by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in their review report on 
Local Government Ethical Standards (January 2019).

. 
2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the update against the Best 

Practice recommendations as detailed within the report.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 On 25 July 2019 the Audit Committee noted the report of the Committee on 

Standards in Public Life and that the Monitoring Officer would discuss with the 
Cumbrian Monitoring Officers and CALC any potential revisions to the existing 
code of conduct and/or guidance to take account of these recommendations for 
further report back to Committee.

3.2 On 28 July 2020 the Audit and Governance Committee considered the draft 
Model Code of Conduct which had been produced by the Local Government 
Association in response to recommendations arising from the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life following their report on Local Government Ethical 
Standards which was published in January 2019. The recommendations 
provided some best practice recommendations, one of which included a 
recommendation to the Local Government Association that they create an 
updated model code of conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of 
councillors and officers of all tiers of local government.

3.2 In noting the consultation, Members of the Committee asked that an earlier 
review be undertaken of the Council’s code with regards in particular to bullying 
and social media provisions with a report for consideration by Members at the 
earliest opportunity.

Page 71

Agenda Item 13



3.3 This review was undertaken and a report presented to Council on 29 September 
with proposals for amendment to the Code.  

3.4 Some of the recommendations from the Committee of Standards in Public Life 
recommend changes to Government which will require legislative change to 
introduce them.  At the date of this report no legislative changes have been 
introduced. 

3.6 The Committee on Standards in Public Life is an advisory body sponsored by the 
Cabinet Officer and examines concerns about standards of conduct by holders of 
public office, and makes recommendations as to changes in present 
arrangements which might be required to ensure the highest standards of probity 
in public life.

3.7 The Committee for Standards in Public Life in their report also identified some 
best practice recommendations which represent a benchmark for ethical practice 
and which they expect any local authority should implement. Feedback on the 
best practice recommendations is being sought in the Autumn on progress on 
these and this report presents an update to the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  

3.8 Attached to this report is a list of the Best Recommendations (Appendix 1) with 
comment and update as shown.

3.9 Guidance around the code is attached elsewhere on this agenda, and the 
Monitoring Officer is currently reviewing the Council’s Standards Arrangements 
which  will be brought to a future meeting of the Committee.

3.10 Members are asked to receive the report and note progress against the best 
practice recommendations.

4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The update is as provided within the report.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no additional financial or resources implications arising from this 

report.  

Page 72

Agenda Item 13



Legal 
7.1.2 There are no specific legal issues arising from the report. 
Equality and Diversity 
7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No – not applicable

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
That best practice 
recommendations are not 
adopted

Arrangements fall short 
of expected standards

Keep arrangements 
under regular review

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this Report

Appendix No. Name of Appendix
1 Best Practice Recommendations and 

update

Background documents available

1. Local Government Ethical 
Standards – a Review by the 
Committee on standards in Public 
Life

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-
government-ethical-standards-report

Page 73

Agenda Item 13

mailto:dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report


This page is intentionally left blank



Committee on Standards in Public Life Best Practice Recommendations  - Update and Action Plan

Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

Best Practice 1
Local Authorities should include 
prohibitions on bullying and 
harassment in codes of conduct. 
These should include a
definition of bullying and 
harassment, supplemented with 
a list of examples of the sort of 
behaviour covered by such a 
definition.

Code of Conduct reviewed to 
include prohibition on 
bullying and harassment. 
This includes definitions of 
bullying and harassment, 
supplemented with a list of 
examples.

Training on new code Code reviewed [29] September 
2020.
Audit and Governance 
considering guidance on code 1 
October 2020.

Dates for training to be 
determined.

Best Practice 2
Councils should include 
provisions in their code requiring 
councillors to comply with any 
formal standards investigation, 
and prohibiting trivial or
malicious allegations by 
councillors.

Code of Conduct reviewed 
to include these 
provisions.

Training on new code.
Code reviewed [29] September 
2020.
Audit and Governance 
considering guidance on code 1 
October 2020.

Dates for training to be 
determined.

Best Practice 3
Principal authorities should 
review their code of conduct 
each year and regularly seek, 
where possible, the views of the

The Code of Conduct was 
reviewed in 2020.

Process to be put in place to 
review Code of Conduct annually.

To add to Audit and Governance 
Committee Work Programme.

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

public, community organisations 
and neighbouring authorities.

We have not previously 
sought the views of the 
public etc. 

The previous code was 
developed through work 
undertaken by the 
Cumbrian MOs

Best Practice 4
An Authority’s code should be 
readily accessible to both 
councillors and the public, in a 
prominent position on the 
council’s website and available 
in council premises.

The Code of Conduct is 
published on the website as 
part of the Constitution and 
as a separate document on 
the complaints and 
feedback page.
A copy of the Code is also 
provided to all councillors on 
election as part of the 
induction pack.
A hard copy would be 
provided on request at the 
Council Offices.
Parish Council Codes of 
Conduct are not always 
readily accessible on the 
Parish Council website.

Review accessibility on the website

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

Best Practice 5
Local authorities should 
update their gifts and 
hospitality register at 
least once per quarter, 
and publish it in an 
accessible format, such 
as CSV.

The register is updated as 
the Monitoring Officer is 
notified by councillors that 
they have been offered gifts 
or hospitality.
Details of any gifts or 
hospitality over £50 are an 
“other registrable interests 
on the members register 
forms which are published 
on the website.

Process to be put in place to 
remind councillors to register 
gifts and hospitality received.

Annual report to Audit and 
Governance on registers of interest.

Best Practice 6
Councils should publish a clear 
and straightforward public 
interest test against which 
allegations are filtered.

The Arrangements for 
dealing with complaints are 
to be reviewed.
  

Arrangements for dealing with 
complaints to be reviewed and 
amended to incorporate the ‘public 
interest’ test referred to in the 
report.

Amended Arrangements for 
dealing with Complaints to be 
considered by Audit and 
Governance Committee on 
[25 November 2020]

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice 7
Local authorities should have 
access to at least two 
Independent Persons.

The Council had until 
recently two Independent 
Persons.The appointments 
are currently being reviewed.

The Cumbria Monitoring 
Officers have arrangements 
to share Independent 
Persons.

Review of appointments for 
Independent Person.

Report to Council 29 
September 2020.

Report to Audit and 
Governance re recruitment 
process 1 October 2020

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

Best Practice 8
An Independent Person should 
be consulted as to whether to 
undertake a formal investigation 
on an allegation, and should be 
given the option to review and 
comment on allegations which 
the responsible officer is minded 
to dismiss as being without
merit, vexatious, or trivial.

The Arrangements for 
dealing with complaints are 
under review 

Review Arrangements for adoption 
Amended Arrangements to be 
considered by Audit and 
Governance Committee on [25 
November 2020]

Best Practice 9
Where a local authority makes a 
decision on an allegation of 
misconduct following a formal 
investigation, a decision notice 
should be published as soon as 
possible on its website,
including a brief statement of 
facts, the provisions of the code 
engaged by the allegations, the 
view of the Independent Person,

The Council has had no 
recent cases which have led 
to formal investigation.  The 
arrangements will be 
reviewed.

Arrangements for dealing with 
complaints to be amended to 
include provision to publish all 
decision notices following formal 
investigation.

Amended Arrangements for 
dealing with Complaints to be 
considered by Audit and 
Governance  Committee on 
[25 November 2020] 
approval.

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

the reasoning of the decision- 
maker and any sanction applied.

Where the Monitoring Officer 
resolves a complaint by way 
of local resolution following 
an investigation, there is no 
such requirement; the 
decision will however be 
reported to Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Regular reporting on complaints to 
Audit and Governance Committee

Incorporated into Audit and 
Governance Committee work 
programme

Best Practice 10
A local authority should have 
straightforward and accessible 
guidance on its website on how 
to make a complaint under the 
code of conduct, the process for 
handling complaints, and 
estimated timescales for 
investigations and outcomes.

The council already has 
accessible guidance on its 
website on how to make a 
complaint (including an 
online form) and 
arrangements for dealing 
with complaints.

Webpage to be reviewed and 
updated as appropriate

Best Practice 11
Formal standards complaints 
about the conduct of a parish 
councillor towards a clerk 
should be made by the chair or 
by the parish council as a
whole, rather than the clerk in all 
but exceptional circumstances.

The borough council does
not have the power to require 
parish councillors to submit 
complaints on behalf of the 
Clerk, but it can put in place 
processes to support this
and can set out expectations 
to parish councils.

Arrangements for dealing with 
complaints to be amended to make 
it clear complaints about the 
conduct of a parish councillor 
towards a Clerk can and should be 
made by the Chair or parish
council as a whole.
Monitoring Officer to write to parish 
councils to notify them and request

Amended Arrangements for 
dealing with Complaints to be 
considered by Audit and 
Governance Committee on 
[25 November].

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

they put processes in place to 
enable this to happen.

Best Practice 12
Monitoring Officers’ roles should 
include providing advice,
support and management of 
investigations and adjudications 
on alleged breaches to parish 
councils within the remit of the 
principal authority. They should 
be provided with adequate 
training, corporate support and 
resources to undertake this 
work.

Complaints made about 
parish councillors will be 
investigated in accordance 
with the approved 
arrangements for dealing 
with complaints. The 
Monitoring Officer attends 
training on relevant matters,
including ethical conduct.  A 
deputy Monitoring Officer is 
also in place to provide 
additional support and 
capacity.

Keep a watching brief on resources 
particularly in light of budget 
reductions and efficiencies which 
may impact on the resources 
available to the Monitoring Officer.

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

Due to pressures, there may 
not be sufficient resource 
within Legal Services to 
conduct Standards 
investigations; however 
there is an approved annual 
budget for obtaining external 
legal services which is 
available should an external 
investigator need to be 
appointed.

Best Practice 13
A local authority should have 
procedures in place to address 
any conflicts of interest when 
undertaking a standards 
investigation. Possible steps 
should include asking the 
Monitoring Officer from a 
different authority to undertake 
the investigation.

Deputy Monitoring Officer in 
place to deal with complaints 
where the Monitoring Officer 
has a conflict of interest. 
Investigations can be 
outsourced to an external 
investigator.
Monitoring Officers from 
other authorities may not 
always have sufficient 
resources
to carry out investigations for 
others.

Approved arrangements for dealing 
with complaints to be amended to 
set out the options available in the 
case of a conflict of interest.

Amended Arrangements for 
dealing with Complaints to be 
considered by Audit and 
Governance Committee on 
[25 November] for approval.

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Best Practice
Recommendation

Comment Action Required Update/progress

Best Practice 14
Councils should report on 
separate bodies they have set 
up or which they own as part of 
their annual governance
statement, and give a full picture 
of their relationship with those 
bodies. Separate bodies created 
by local authorities should abide 
by the Nolan principle of 
openness, and publish their 
board agendas and minutes and 
annual reports in an accessible 
place.

The Council has not set up 
separate bodies.

Monitoring Officer to request the 
Council’s Chief Financial Officer to 
include relevant provisions in the 
annual Governance Statement in 
the event separate bodies are set 
up.
To require any separate bodies set 
up in the future to abide by the 
Nolan principles and publish 
agendas and minutes.

Best Practice 15
Senior officers should meet 
regularly with political group 
leaders or group whips to 
discuss standards issues.

Currently no regular 
scheduled meetings with 
group leaders.

Bi-annual meetings (as a 
minimum) between Chief 
Executive, Monitoring Officer and 
group leaders and deputies to be 
considered.

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
1 October 2020

Recruitment of Independent Person(s)

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Debbie Storr

Wards:  Not applicable

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 That the Audit and Governance Committee notes and approves the proposed 

arrangements for the appointment of Independent Person(s).

2.0 Recommendation 

(1) That the Committee note and approves the recruitment process for the 
appointment of Independent Person(s) and provides feedback on the 
term of appointment and number of appointees; 

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 At full Council on 29 September, Members were asked to confirm extension of 

the appointment of Stephen Murray as Independent Person whilst  a recruitment 
process was undertaken. 

3.2 Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the Authority is required to 
appoint at least one Independent Person to assist the Authority in promoting and 
maintaining high standards of conduct amongst all its members, whose views 
must be sought, and taken into account, before any decision on an allegation 
which has been investigated is taken.

3.3 Appointments are made following an advertisement, application and interview 
process and with a positive vote by a majority of councillors as required by the 
Localism Act. 

3.4 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders)(England)(Amendment) Regulations 
2015 require the Council to invite relevant Independent Persons to be members 
of a Panel appointed by the authority under section 102(4) of the Local 
Government act 1972 for the purpose of advising the authority on matters 

Page 85

Agenda Item 14



relating to dismissal of relevant officers of the authority. Such invitation must be 
issued to all relevant Independent Persons with a view to appointing at least two 
Independent Persons to the Panel.  The relevant officers to which these 
provisions apply by legislation are the head of the authority’s paid service, the 
chief finance officer or the monitoring officer.

3.5 The Independent Person has the following roles to perform:

Standards
(i) The view of an Independent Person must be sought and taken into 

account by the Council before it makes a finding that any Member has 
failed to comply with its code of conduct or imposes any sanction;

(ii) The views of an Independent Person may be sought on whether to 
investigate a complaint and how to deal with a particular allegation; and

(iii) Any Member against whom an allegation has been made (including a 
parish councillor) may consult the Independent Person regarding that 
allegation.

Dismissal of Relevant Officers
(iv) The Independent Persons may be appointed to a Panel which would 

provide advice, views or recommendations to the Council before a vote 
was taken at a meeting on whether or not to approve the dismissal of a 
relevant officer.

3.6 Individuals appointed as an Independent Person must be recruited through a 
formal procedure.

(a) the vacancy must be advertised in such manner as the authority considers 
is likely to bring to the attention of the public;
(b) an applicant has to submit a formal application to be appointed as an 
Independent Person;
(c) the Independent Person’s appointment must be approved by a ‘majority of 
the members of the authority’

Appointment must be made by the full Council.

3.7 An Independent Person must not be:
a) a member, co-opted member, or officer of Barrow Borough Council;
b) a member, co-opted member or officer of a parish council that falls within 
the Borough area; or
c) a relative or close friend of any of the above.

An Independent Person may also not be appointed if at any time during the 
preceding five years the person was a member, co-opted member or officer of 
the authority, or a member, co-opted member or officer of a parish council within 
the Borough.

Page 86

Agenda Item 14



3.8 Until recently the Council had two Independent Persons.  Council is being asked 
at its meeting on 29 September to extend the appointment of Stephen Murray 
until 1 October 2021.

3.9 Members may wish to consider whether they wish to recruit more than one 
Independent Persons and for what period.  The Local Authorities (Standing 
Orders)(England)(Amendment) Regulations 2015  require two Independent 
Persons. The Best Practice recommendations from the review by the Committee 
on Standards in Public Life on Local Government Ethical Standards recommend 
that Local Authorities should have access to at least two Independent Persons. 
They are also recommending that the Localism Act should be amended to 
require that Independent Persons are appointed for a fixed term of two years, 
renewable once.  

3.10 Within Cumbria, there is opportunity to call upon neighbouring Independent 
Persons if needed. Whilst the recommended timescale is noted it is not in 
legislation yet, and the Council has previously struggled to attract interest in the 
role.

3.11 It is proposed that the recruitment exercise will be undertaken based on the 
following principles:

 The recruitment exercise to include advertisement, application and 
interview process;

 That recruitment of two Independent Persons be sought.
 The interview panel to consist of the Monitoring Officer, Chair of Audit and 

Governance Committee and two other members from the Audit and 
Governance Committee, to include one Opposition Member;

 The appointments to be confirmed at Full Council with a positive vote by a 
majority of councillors

 The appointments to be for 4 years;
 The Independent Person “job description” to be approved by the 

Monitoring Officer; 
 The statutory restrictions detailed in the report shall apply;
 Any application from an existing Independent Person to be considered on 

its merits.

3.12 Members are asked to note and approve the recruitment process for the 
appointment of Independent Person(s) and provides feedback on the term of 
appointment and number of appointees

4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The options are as set out in the report.

Page 87

Agenda Item 14



6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins delivery of the Council’s priorities

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 The Independent Persons may claim their reasonable expenses in carrying out 

their role.

7.1.2 A recruitment will require appropriate advertising, and training will be provided as 
appropriate which would be met within existing resources.

Legal 
7.1.3 Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 requires a relevant authority to make 

provision for the appointment of at least one Independent Person “whose views 
are to be sought, and taken into account, by the authority before it makes its 
decision on an allegation that it has decided to investigate”. 

7.1.4 The Localism Act does not prescribe a time limit on the terms of office of 
independent persons and these are therefore within the discretion of the Council. 
The Act does say that the vacancy for an Independent Person must be 
advertised in a way which brings to the attention of the public.

7.1.5 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders)(England)(Amendment) Regulations 
provide that where a decision to dismiss any statutory officer is to be undertaken 
by the Council, prior to making such a decision, the Council must invite at least 
two Independent Persons to be members of a Panel to consider the matter, and 
take any recommendations from that Panel into account before making the final 
decision

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The Council is not able to 
recruit an Independent Person

That the Council is not 
able to comply with its 
requirements under the 
Localism Act 2011

Recruitment process and 
clear advertising of the 
role

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Background Documents Available

Page 88

Agenda Item 14



Local Government Ethical 
Standards  - A Review by 
the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/syste
m/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Comm
and_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF

Page 89

Agenda Item 14

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF


This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow Borough Council 
Audit and Governance Committee

1 October  2020
Code of Conduct and Social Media Guidance

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Debbie Storr

Wards:  Not applicable

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report presents revised guidance following adoption on the Code of Conduct 

and new social media guidance to support the Member Code of Conduct and 
Social Media Protocol.

2.0 Recommendation 
(1) It is recommended that the Committee receive an update on revisions 

to the Member Code of Conduct as considered by Council on 29 
September 2020; and

(2) That  the Committee endorse the Code and Social Media Guidance as 
attached to this report and incorporate a review within the Committee’s 
work programme.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 On 30 July 2020 the Audit and Governance Committee considered the draft 

Model Code of Conduct which had been produced by the Local Government 
Association in response to recommendations arising from the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life following their report on Local Government Ethical 
Standards which was published in January 2019. The recommendations 
provided some best practice recommendations, one of which included a 
recommendation to the Local Government Association that they create an 
updated model code of conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of 
councillors and officers of all tiers of local government.

3.2 In noting the consultation, Members of the Committee asked that an earlier 
review be undertaken of the Council’s code with regards in particular to bullying 
and social media provisions with a report for consideration by Members at the 
earliest opportunity.

Page 91

Agenda Item 15



3.3 Following consultation with Members the Council is due to consider revisions to 
the Code as set out in Appendix 1 at its meeting on 29 September. An update 
will be provided to the meeting.

3.4 Social Media was also flagged as an area where more guidance was needed.  
Sitting along side the Code the Council has a Social Media Policy which all 
members should be aware of.  Additional guidance has been drafted to support 
this and the revised code as attached at appendices 2 and 3.

3.5 The Member Training Working Group discussed the range of guidance and 
protocols that were available to members, and requested that a simple form of 
signposting could be drafted to aid their reference when needed.  This is in the 
process of being considered. The signposting will also include reference to the 
recently published LGA guidance on handling intimidation which has been 
circulated to all Members.

3.6 Training will be provided on the new provisions and a report back to members as 
appropriate.

3.7 Members are asked to consider the report and attachments.

4.0 Consultation 
The Member Training Working Group has been consulted through this process.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Not to endorse any additional guidance and protocol for circulation. The 

recommendations are there to help support members in their roles.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 Adopting the amendments set out will have no financial implications outside 

existing budgets. The changes to the code will require training of Members which 
would be considered within existing resources.  

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no additional legal issues to raise.

Equality and Diversity 

Page 92

Agenda Item 15



7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No – not applicable for this 
report. Equality provisions are contained with in the code.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Inconsistency around code 
interpretation

Reputational, potential 
breaches of the code of 
conduct

Ensure training to raise 
awareness among 
members, in particular 
dual hatted members

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this Report

Appendix No. Name of Appendix
1 Revised Code of Conduct (to be 

considered at Council 29 Sept.)
2 Social Media Guidance
3 Guidance on the Code

Background documents available

1. Local Government Ethical Standards – a Review by the 
Committee on standards in Public Life

https://www.gov.uk/gove
rnment/publications/loca
l-government-ethical-
standards-report

2. Local Government Association – Consultation draft Model 
Code of Conduct

https://www.local.gov.uk/
local-government-
association-model-
member-code-conduct-
consultation

3. Barrow Borough Council Social Media Policy file://bbc-
filestore/dstorr/Downloa
ds/Social%20Media%20
Policy%2008032017%2
0(1).pdf

4. LGA guidance on handling intimidation https://www.local.gov.uk/
sites/default/files/docum
ents/Full%20word%20e
nglish%20version%20gu
ide%20for%20councillor
s%20on%20handling%2
0intimidation_FINAL.pdf

Page 93

Agenda Item 15

mailto:dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-government-association-model-member-code-conduct-consultation
file://bbc-filestore/dstorr/Downloads/Social%20Media%20Policy%2008032017%20(1).pdf
file://bbc-filestore/dstorr/Downloads/Social%20Media%20Policy%2008032017%20(1).pdf
file://bbc-filestore/dstorr/Downloads/Social%20Media%20Policy%2008032017%20(1).pdf
file://bbc-filestore/dstorr/Downloads/Social%20Media%20Policy%2008032017%20(1).pdf
file://bbc-filestore/dstorr/Downloads/Social%20Media%20Policy%2008032017%20(1).pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Full%20word%20english%20version%20guide%20for%20councillors%20on%20handling%20intimidation_FINAL.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Full%20word%20english%20version%20guide%20for%20councillors%20on%20handling%20intimidation_FINAL.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Full%20word%20english%20version%20guide%20for%20councillors%20on%20handling%20intimidation_FINAL.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Full%20word%20english%20version%20guide%20for%20councillors%20on%20handling%20intimidation_FINAL.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Full%20word%20english%20version%20guide%20for%20councillors%20on%20handling%20intimidation_FINAL.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Full%20word%20english%20version%20guide%20for%20councillors%20on%20handling%20intimidation_FINAL.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Full%20word%20english%20version%20guide%20for%20councillors%20on%20handling%20intimidation_FINAL.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 1

Members’ Code of Conduct
for Members and Co-opted 
Members of the Authority

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 2

Barrow-in Furness Borough Council (“The Council”) has adopted the following code 
which has effect from [DATE]  and sets out  the conduct that is expected of elected 
members and co-opted members of the Council  (“Members”) when they are acting 
in that capacity as required by section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”).

The Council has a statutory duty under the Act to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct by Members and the Code sets out the standards that the 
Council expects Members to observe.

The Code is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations that are 
placed on Members.  It is the responsibility of individual Members to comply with the 
provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may apply to them 
from time to time. Failure to do so may result in a sanction being applied by the 
Council.  Failure to take appropriate action in respect of a Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest may result in a criminal conviction and a fine of up to £5,000 and/or 
disqualification from office for a period of up to 5 years.  

The Code is intended to be consistent with Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life 
as attached as Annex 1 to this code and should be read in the light of those 
principles, namely that Council Members will act with selflessness, integrity, 
objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership.  

Part 1 - GENERAL CONDUCT

When acting in your capacity as a Member:-

(1) You must treat others with respect, including members of the public, 
council employees and employees or representatives of partner 
organisations; and other elected members;

(2) You should promote equality by not discriminating unlawfully against 
any person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their sex, 
race, age, religion or belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, marriage and civil partnerships, sexual orientation or 
disability. 

(3) You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the authority’s 
statutory officers and its other employees and should consider any 
advice given by the Monitoring Officer or Responsible Finance officer 
when taking decisions

(4) You must not bully or harass any person, including any Council Officer, 
other elected members and members of the public, and you must not 
intimidate or improperly influence any person who is involved in any 
complaint about any alleged breach of this code of conduct.

Page 96

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 3

Note: 
Bullying may be characterised as: 

 offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour; or 
 an abuse or misuse of power in a way that intends to undermine, 

humiliate, criticise unfairly or injure someone. 

Harassment may be characterised as unwanted conduct which has the 
purpose or effect of violating an individual's dignity or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for 
an individual. 

Bullying and/or harassment may take many forms and may relate to a 
variety of issues. For example, bullying and harassment may relate to:
 

 age 
 disability 
 gender reassignment 
 marriage and civil partnerships
 pregnancy and maternity
 race 
 religion or belief
 sex 
 sexual orientation

This list is not exhaustive and any form of bullying or harassment is 
prohibited by the Code.

(5) You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly 
confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain 
financial or other material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a 
close associate, an employer or a business carried on by you.

(6) You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to 
outside individuals or organisations that may influence you in the 
performance of your official duties. 

(7) You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be 
regarded as bringing the Council, or your office as a member of the 
Council, into disrepute. 

(8) When carrying out public duties you must make all choices, such as 
making public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending 
individuals for reward or benefit on merit.

Page 97

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 4

(9) You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and 
the decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to 
give reasons for those decisions and actions.

(10) You must comply with any Protocol adopted by the Council which 
seeks to regulate the conduct of its elected members or co-opted 
members and which the Council has specifically declared should fall 
within the provisions of this code of conduct and which is listed in 
Annex 3 to this Code. 

(11) You must not disclose any information given to you or acquired by you 
as a Member in breach of any confidence.

(12) You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary 
interests and any other registrable interests, that relate to your public 
duties and must take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 
protects the public interest, including registering and declaring interests 
in a manner which conforms with the procedures set out below.

(13) You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the 
resources of your Council, that such resources are not used improperly 
for political purposes (including party political purposes) and you must 
have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 
under the Local Government Act 1986.

(13) You are accountable for your decisions to the public and must co-
operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office 
including fully co-operating with any formal standards investigation or 
process.

(14) Councillors must not misuse the standards process by, for example, 
making trivial or malicious allegations against another councillor.

(15) You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving 
in your office.

Page 98

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 5

Part 2 - REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

Registering and declaring disclosable pecuniary and other registrable interests:

(1) You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, 
notify your Council’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest 
as defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the 
pecuniary interest is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary 
interest of somebody with whom you are living with as a husband or wife, or 
as if you were civil partners. These interests and those at (2) below are 
shown at Annex 2 to this code.

(2) In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted 
member, notify your Council’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary 
or non-pecuniary interest which your Council has decided should be included 
in the register. 

(3) If an interest has not been entered onto the Council’s register, then the 
member must disclose the interest to any meeting of the Council at which 
they are present, where they have a disclosable interest in any matter being 
considered and where the matter is not a ‘sensitive interest' as described by 
the Localism Act 2011. If the interest being declared is ‘sensitive’ you only 
have to disclose the fact that you have an interest but do not need to disclose 
the nature of the interest.

(4) Following any disclosure of an interest not on the Council’s register or the 
subject of pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest within 28 days beginning with the date of disclosure.

(5) Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in 
which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by regulations made by the 
Secretary of State.  Additionally, you must observe the restrictions your 
Council places on your involvement in matters where you have a pecuniary or 
non-pecuniary interest as defined by your Council.

Page 99

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 6

Annex 1
SEVEN GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF CONDUCT

The principles of public life apply to anyone who works as a public office-holder. 
This includes all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally and 
locally, and all people appointed to work in the civil service, local government, the 
police, courts and probation services, NDPBs, and in the health, education, social 
and care services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public and 
stewards of public resources. The principles also have application to all those in 
other sectors delivering public services

Selflessness

1. Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

Integrity

2. Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their 
work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other 
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must 
declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

Objectivity

3.  Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on 
merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability

4. Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and 
actions and must submit themselves to the  scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

Openness

5. Holders of public office should act and taken decisions in an open and 
transparent manner.  Information should not be withheld from the public unless 
there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing. 

Honesty

6.  Holders of public office should be truthful

Leadership

7. Holders of public office should exhibit  these principles in their own behaviour.  
They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing 
to challenge poor behaviour whenever it occurs.

Page 100

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 7

|Annex 2
PECUNIARY AND OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (as defined by regulations)

1. Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2. Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in 
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or 
towards the election expenses of M. (This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3. Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body 
in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant 
authority – 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

4. Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant 
authority.  

5. Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area 
of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

6. Details of any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge) – 

(a) The landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) The tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial 

interest.

7. Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the relevant authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Part 5 Version 9 (June 2020) – Revised Sept.20          Page 8

 
OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS

These interests are what the Council has determined should be entered into the 
authority’s register of interests

8. Details of any bodies of which I am a member, or in a position of general 
control or management, and to which I am appointed or nominated to by the 
District Council.   

9. Details of any bodies of which I am a member, or in a position of general 
control or management, and which:-

(a) Exercises function of a public nature;

(b) Is directed towards charitable purposes; or

(c) Is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes influencing 
public opinion or policy (this includes political parties or trade unions). 

10. Details of any persons from whom I have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £50. (You must register any gifts or hospitality 
worth £50 or over that you receive personally in connection with your official 
duties). 

Annex 3 

Associated Protocols

The Council has adopted the following Protocols which are intended to regulate the 
conduct of its elected members or co-opted members and which the Council has 
specifically declared should all within the provisions of this code of conduct pursuant 
to paragraph 10 of the code:

Licensing Code of Conduct for Elected Members

Social Media Policy 

Page 102

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Page 1 of 4 

 

SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS 

 
Purpose of this Guidance 

 

This guidance is intended to be read alongside the Council’s Social Media Policy so that Members 
have greater clarity as to what is and is not acceptable usage of social media and complements the 
general rules under the Code of Conduct for Members. 
 
What is Social Media? 

 

Social media is the term to describe websites and online tools which allow people to interact with 
each other.   This could, for example, be blogs, and postings on a wide range of social media 
platforms including (but not limited to) Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, Snap-chat, Instagram etc. 

 

On many social media sites users share information, give opinions and may create interest groups 
or pages leading to longer exchanges.  Ultimately people use these sites and tools to build online 
communities and networks which encourage participation and engagement. 

 
Social Media and Members 

 

It is not a requirement for Members to have a Facebook or Twitter account or to use other forms 
of social media to fulfil their job as a Member. However, if you are using or planning to use social 
media in connection with your work as a Councillor, or are already using such media in your 
private capacity, these guidelines will be relevant.  

 

Social Media can be used: 

 

 To support Members in performing their community leadership role. 

 To keep in touch with or obtain local views and opinions. 

 For political campaigning. 

 For campaigning on local issues.  

Types of Social Media: 

 Blogging and micro blogging – online journals – Twitter is an example of micro 
blogging, where entries are limited to 140 characters. 

 Online Forums – people with similar interests sharing information and opinions  

 Social networking sites – these facilitate connections between those who already know 
each other, often in a social context, but are increasingly used by businesses to promote 
their products or services- Facebook is an example. 

 Video  and  photo  publishing  –  sharing  videos  and  photographs  worldwide  –  Flickr  is  
an example. 

 

Etiquette and style  

 

 Keep your communications clear, positive, polite and professional. Plain language helps. 
Any communication is capable of being misinterpreted.  

 Avoid being ironic or sarcastic, it can be misinterpreted. 

 On Facebook, you will need to monitor and, if necessary, censor the contributions that other 
people make to your site; delete them if they do not match your required standards of 
behaviour or language. Defamatory and offensive language will be attributed to the 
publisher as well as the original author. 

Page 103

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 2



Page 2 of 4 

 

 On Twitter, you can block people who are habitually offensive or vexatious. Remember 
however, blocking them only stops them engaging directly with you, their tweets will continue 
to be public to all of their followers. 

 By the nature of such media, misinterpretation or misrepresentation, particularly with regard 
to something that is perceived as being more controversial than it was expected to be, is 
likely to lead to rapid and wide broadcasting of that apparently “controversial” item. 

 There are no special, additional legal or ethical burdens relating to the use of social 
media. The same rules apply here that govern the rest of your behaviour as a councillor.. 

 Although the best use of social media is conversational in tone, publishing to the internet 
is still publishing. What you’ve said online is recorded and it is permanent. Most pitfalls will 
be avoided if your online content is accurate, informative and thought through. Think of it as 
speaking in public. Think before you commit each word. 

 

The Law 
 
Civil Law 

 

 Libel & Defamation – It is against the law to make a false statement about someone 
which damages their personal or professional reputation. Crucially - even if you simply 
retweet or pass on information originally posted by others, you may still be held equally as 
responsible as the original commentator. This can also apply to publishing images. If you’re 
found liable to another person, you could be ordered to damages 

 

 Copyright – The legal ownership of the contents of documents, photos, videos and music 
belong to the person who created them. You could be in breach of copyright if you 
reproduce such material without the owner’s permission. Always ask for written consent 
before you use someone else’s material. 

 

 Political Comment and Electioneering - Remember that although it is acceptable to make 
political points or canvass votes via your own social media accounts this will not be 
permissible if you are using this via council supplied computer equipment, certainly in the 
run-up to elections. The Electoral Commission has further information about the return on 
expenditure that candidates need to provide on advertising or campaign literature. 

 

 Bias and Predetermination – if you are involved in making planning, licensing or other 

quasi-judicial  decisions,  do  not  say  anything  through  social  media  (or  indeed  

anywhere)  that suggests you have made your mind up on an issue that is due to be 

formally decided. While your likely view on a particular application may be well known, you 

need to be able to show that you attended the committee or hearing prepared to take on 

board and weigh all the evidence, and were genuinely persuadable to a different view, 

otherwise, the decision may be later challenged as invalid. If a person has suffered some 

sort of detriment as a result of such an invalid decision, they may have a claim against the 

council for damages. 

 
 
Criminal Offences 
  

 Harassment - It is a criminal offence to repeatedly pursue a campaign against someone 
where this is likely to cause alarm, harassment, nuisance or distress.  

 Data Protection - It is illegal to publish personal data about individuals unless they have 
given you their permission. As a councillor you are a data controller in your own right and 
therefore personally responsible for what you publish.  

 Incitement - It is a criminal offence to incite any criminal act.  

Page 104

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 2



Page 3 of 4 

 

 Discrimination and Racially Aggravated Offences (or any other protected 
Characteristic) - It is a criminal offence to make a discriminatory remark about anyone based 
on a “Protected Characteristic” as defined in The Equality Act ( such as their race, religion, 
sexual orientation etc).  

 Malicious & Obscene Communications - It is a criminal offence to send malicious or 
obscene communications. 

 
Relevant Elements of the Members’ Code of Conduct: 
 
If you conduct yourself on Twitter or Facebook as you would in person on the street then you will be 
fine. 
 
Remember that according to guidance from the Ombudsman, the Code of Conduct applies 
to you whenever you are “Conducting the business of your authority, acting, claiming to act 
or give the impression you are acting in your official capacity as a member or representative 
of your authority”. Also the Code applies if you “Conduct yourself in a manner which could 
reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or your authority into disrepute”. If you can be 
identified as a councillor when you are using social media, either by your account name or how you 
describe yourself or by what you comment upon and how you comment, the 
requirements of the Code of Conduct apply. Also if you say something that could be 
regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute the Code applies even if you are 
not apparently acting in your official capacity or do not identify yourself as a member. 
 
Remember that the Ombudsman’s guidance states that “Making unfair or inaccurate 
criticism of your authority in a public arena might well be regarded as bringing your authority 
into disrepute” 
 
In the same way that you are required to act in council meetings or in communities you 
should: 
 

 Show respect for others - do not use social media to be rude or disrespectful. 

 Not disclose confidential information about people or the council. 

 Not bully or intimidate others - repeated negative comments about or to individuals could be 
interpreted as bullying or intimidation. 

 Not try to secure a benefit for yourself or a disadvantage for others. 

 Abide by the laws of equality – do not publish anything that might be seen as racist, sexist, 
ageist, homophobic or anti faith. Even as a joke or “tongue in cheek” 

 

Golden Rules 

 

Think before you tweet or post on Facebook. Do not say anything, post views or opinions 

that you would not be prepared to: 

 

 Discuss face to face with the person you are speaking about. 

 Write on a placard and carry down your high street and discuss and defend with anyone 

who sees it. 

 Be prepared to have minutes in a public meeting – remember Twitter or Facebook 

effectively publicly minutes everything for you as you go along. 

 

Remember that once you have said something it may be seen by millions - friends, 

supporters, political opponents and the press and could be re-tweeted around the world in 

minutes. 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 2



Page 4 of 4 

 

Keep your messages professional, polite and positive. 

 

Remember to try to keep tweets and texts separate – many people tweet comments that 

they would previously have texted someone privately; this may be about meeting up later 

through to ‘in’ jokes that could be misinterpreted. 

 

Don’t follow an individual unless you know them or have a good reason for doing so.  

 

If you make a mistake - admit it. Mistakes happen so don’t try to cover it up as there will 

always be a record of what you’ve said. 

 

Don’t enter into unhelpful online arguments; remember all of your followers or friends will be 

witnessing this online. Ignore people or block them if they persist in vexatious comments. 

 

Don’t tweet or post on Facebook when you are tired. It’s probably sensible to turn off your 

phone at any time when you think your judgement may be impaired. 

 

Bear in mind that it is possible for your followers and friends to be seen. If you follow or are 

Facebook “friends” with council employees, contractors who have been procured to provide services 

to the council, a company or member of the public making a planning application or pressure groups, 

this might be construed as having a close personal association with them 

and therefore a personal interest. 

 

As with your own leaflets or newsletters, always ask permission before taking a picture that 

you intend to use. NEVER take photos of children without the express permission of their 

parents based on an understanding of what you intend to use the picture for. 

 

Do not allow anyone else access to your social media accounts, protect your passwords, 

especially if you use a public computer. 

 

Just like email, you can get spam in social media. Be wary about direct messages via 

Twitter, even from people you know, with messages such as ‘Hi, have you seen 

this photo of you on Twitter?’ Delete these before opening, as the spam could then be sent 

to all of the people you are following. 

 
GENERAL 

 

The Council wishes to encourage Members’ use of technology, including social media. This guidance 

is intended to help Members use social media in a way that avoids legal and reputational risk. 

Page 106

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 2



Sept20 Page 1

GUIDANCE ON CODE OF CONDUCT 

This document has been produced to offer guidance on the Code of Conduct for Members. 
The code, amended from time to time to reflect current guidance, applies to all members 
and co-opted members of the Council.

The Member code does not apply to the actions of the Council as a whole, or to the conduct 
of its officers and employees.  

Ultimately, it is the members’ responsibility to take specific advice from the Monitoring 
Officer where appropriate and to make a decision as to the most suitable course of action.
 
Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct (“the Code”) is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the 
obligations that are placed on Members, but it is the responsibility of individual members to 
comply with the provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may apply 
to them from time to time.

The Code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles as attached to the code 
which define the standards that members should uphold.  A failure to act in accordance with 
these general principles may amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct. For example, by 
placing yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned, your 
conduct may be conduct which could “bringing the Council or your office as a member of the 
Council into disrepute”. 

When does the Code apply to you?

The Code applies to you whenever you act in your official capacity as a Member or co-opted 
member of the Authority.  A co-opted member is a person who is not a member of the 
Council but who is either a member of any committee or sub-committee of the Council, or a 
member of, and represents the Council on any joint committee or joint sub-committee of the 
Council and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at that meeting of 
that committee or sub-committee.

For the purposes of the Code, a “meeting” is a meeting of the Council, any of its 
committees, sub-committees, joint committees or  joint sub-committees.     

General Obligations under the Code 

You must treat others with respect including members of the public, council 
employees and employees or representatives of partner organisations, and other 
elected members.

Respect 
You must treat others with respect. In politics, rival groupings are common, either in formal 
political parties or more informal alliances.  It is expected that each will campaign for their 
ideas, and they may also seek to discredit the politics and actions of their opponents.  
Criticism of ideas and opinion is part of democratic debate, and does not in itself amount to 
failing to treat someone with respect.

Ideas and policies may be robustly criticised, but individuals should not be subject to 
unreasonable or excessive personal attacks.  This particularly applies to dealing with the 

Page 107

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 2

public and officers.  Chairs of meetings are expected to apply the rules of debate and 
procedure rules or standing orders to prevent abusive or disorderly conduct.

Whilst there may be unreasonable demands on members, members should, as far as 
possible, treat people courteously and with consideration.  Rude and offensive behaviour 
lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in its elected representatives.

You should promote equality by not discriminating unlawfully against any person, 
and by treating people with respect, regardless of their sex, race, age, religion or 
belief, gender reassignment, marriage & civil partnership, pregnancy & maternity, 
sexual orientation or disability.

You must not do anything which may cause your authority to breach any equality laws. You 
must be careful not to act in a way which may amount to any of the prohibited forms of 
discrimination, or do anything which hinders your authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties 
under equality laws.  Such conduct may cause your authority to breach the law, and you 
may find yourself subject to a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the code 
of conduct.

You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the authority’s statutory officers 
and its other employees and should consider any advice given by the Monitoring 
Officer or Responsible Finance Officer when taking decisions

You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the Authority’s statutory officers and its 
other employees.

You should not approach or pressure anyone who works for, or on behalf of the authority to 
carry out their duties in a biased or partisan way.  They must be neutral and should not be 
coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would undermine their neutrality.  For example, 
you should not get officers to help you prepare party political material, or to help you with 
matters relating to your private business.  

Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for example, their 
reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they have 
written, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the 
content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional integrity. 

You must not bully or harass any person, including any Council Officer, other elected 
members and members of the public, and you must not intimidate or improperly 
influence any person who is involved in any complaint against any alleged breach of 
this code of conduct.

You should not bully any person.  As an elected Member you are in a position of authority 
and power over Council employees and others.

Bullying may be characterised as:
 Offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour; or
 An abuse or misuse of power in a way that intends to undermine, humiliate, criticise 

unfairly or injure someone.

Page 108

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 3

Legitimate, reasonable and constructive criticism of a worker's performance or behaviour, or 
reasonable instructions given to workers in the course of their employment, will not amount 
to bullying on their own.

Harassment may be characterised as unwanted conduct which has the purpose or effect of 
violating an individuals’ dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or 
offensive environment for an individual.

Bullying and/or harassment may take many forms and may relate to a variety of issues.  For 
example; bullying and harassment may relate to:

 Age
 Disability
 Gender reassignment
 Marriage and civil partnerships
 Pregnancy and maternity
 Race
 Sex
 Sexual orientation

Examples of bullying behaviour include:

 Spreading malicious rumours, or insulting someone by word or behaviour
 Copying memos that are critical about someone to others who do not need to know
 Ridiculing or demeaning someone – picking on them or setting them up to fail
 Exclusion or victimisation
 Unfair treatment
 Overbearing supervision or other misuse of power or position
 Unwelcome sexual advances – touching, standing too close, display of offensive 

materials, asking for sexual favours, making decisions on the basis of sexual 
advances being accepted or rejected

 Making threats or comments about job security without foundation
 Deliberately undermining a competent worker by overloading and constant criticism
 Preventing individuals progressing by intentionally blocking promotion or training 

opportunities

This list is not exhaustive and any form of bullying or harassment is prohibited by the Code.

You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material 
benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a close associate, an employer or business 
carried on by you.  

For example, your behaviour would be improper if you sought to further your private 
interests through your position as a member.

You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside 
individuals or organisations that may influence you in the performance of your official 
duties.

Page 109

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 4

It would not be appropriate to accept favours, gifts or hospitality from someone that may, at 
a later date, require something from the Council that you are in a position to influence.  For 
example, you may be offered a discount by a business in the area which subsequently 
applies for planning permission and/or a licence.  You may be on the relevant committee 
dealing with the application and, therefore, be in a difficult position. 

You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing the Council, or your office as a member of the Council, into disrepute.

You must not bring your office or authority into disrepute whilst acting in your official 
capacity.

As a member, your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of 
ordinary members of the public.  You should be aware that your actions might have an 
adverse impact on your office or your authority.  Dishonest and deceitful behaviour in your 
role as a member may bring your authority into disrepute, as may conduct in your private life 
which results in a criminal conviction, such as dishonest, threatening or violent behaviour.

   
When carrying out public duties you make all choices, such as making public 
appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for reward or benefit 
on merit.

As an elected Member of the Council you are responsible for administering resources on 
behalf of the public of the area that you serve.  You should administer these resources fairly 
and in accordance with the law.  It is inappropriate for the Council’s resources or powers to 
be used in such a way that the authority and its Members be left open to accusations that in 
appropriate influence played a part, for example, “it’s not what you know, it’s who you know!”

You must be open as possible about your decisions and actions and the decisions 
and actions of your authority and should be prepared to give reasons for those 
decisions and actions.

The law requires that Members give reasons for their decisions.  This is so that the public 
we serve are able to understand why we have taken a course of action and, if necessary, 
exercise any right of challenge that is open to them.

You must comply with any protocol adopted by the Council which seeks to regulate 
the conduct of its elected members or co-opted members and which the Council has 
specifically declared should fall within the provisions of this code of conduct and 
which is listed in Annex 3 to this Code.

Protocols are intended to provide Guidance and complement the general rules under the 
code of Conduct for Member. Breach or a Protocol may amount to a breach of the Member 
Code of Conduct, e.g. in terms of bringing the Council into disrepute, or failing to treat 
people with respect.

Page 110

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 5

You must not disclose any information given to you or acquired by you as a Member 
in breach of any confidence

There may be circumstances where you are required to do so by law but you should seek 
the advice of the Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about this. 

You must not disclose confidential information, or information which you believe to be of a 
confidential nature, except in any of the following circumstances:

• You have the consent of the person authorised to give it.
• You are required by law to do so.
• The disclosure is made to a third party for the purposes of obtaining professional 

advice (for example, your lawyer or other professional adviser) provided that person 
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person.

• The disclosure is in the public interest.  This is only justified in limited 
circumstances, when all of the following four requirements are met:

1. the disclosure must be reasonable
2. the disclosure must be in the public interest
3. the disclosure must be made in good faith
4. the disclosure must be made in compliance with any reasonable  

requirements of your authority

In relation to the disclosure of confidential information in the public interest, the four 
requirements to be met are outlined in more detail below.

1. The first requirement, that the disclosure  must be reasonable, requires you to consider 
matters such as:

• Whether you believe that the information disclosed, and any allegation contained in 
it, is substantially true. If you do not believe this, the disclosure is unlikely to be 
reasonable.

• Whether you make the disclosure for personal gain. If you are paid to disclose the 
information, the disclosure is unlikely to be reasonable.

• The identity of the person to whom the disclosure is made. It may be reasonable to 
disclose information to the police or to an appropriate regulator. It is less likely to be 
reasonable for you to disclose the information to the world at large through the 
media.

• The extent of the information disclosed. The inclusion of unnecessary detail, and in 
particular, private matters such as addresses or telephone numbers, is likely to 
render the disclosure unreasonable.

• The seriousness of the matter. The more serious the matter disclosed, the more 
likely it is that the disclosure will be reasonable.

• The timing of the disclosure. If the matter to which the disclosure relates has 
already occurred, and is unlikely to occur again, the disclosure may be less likely to 
be reasonable than if the matter is continuing, or is likely to reoccur.

• Whether the disclosure involves your authority failing in  a duty of confidence owed 
to another person.

2. The second requirement, that the disclosure must be in the public interest, needs to 
involve one or more of the following matters or something of comparable seriousness, that 
has either happened in the past, is currently happening, or is likely to happen in the future:

(a) A criminal offence is committed.

Page 111

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 6

(b) Your authority or some other person fails to comply with any legal obligation to 
which they are subject.
(c) A miscarriage of justice occurs.
(d) The health or safety of any individual is in danger.
(e) The environment is likely to be damaged.
(f) That information tending to show any matter falling within (a) to (e) is deliberately 
concealed.

3. The third requirement, that the disclosure is made in good faith, will not be met if you act 
with an ulterior motive, for example, to achieve a party political advantage or to settle a 
score with a political opponent.

4. The fourth requirement, that  you comply with the reasonable requirements of your 
authority, means that before making the disclosure you must comply with your authority’s 
policies or protocols on matters such as whistle-blowing and confidential information. You 
must first raise your concerns through the appropriate channels set out in such policies or 
protocols.

In summary, to decide whether the disclosure is reasonable and in the public interest, you 
may need to conduct a balancing exercise weighing up the public interest in maintaining 
confidentiality against any countervailing public interest favouring disclosure. This will 
require a careful focus on how confidential the information is, on any potentially harmful 
consequences of its disclosure, and on any factors which may justify its disclosure despite 
these potential consequences.

In some situations, it is extremely unlikely that a disclosure can be justified in the public 
interest. These will include where the disclosure amounts to a criminal offence, or where the 
information disclosed is protected by legal professional privilege.

You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary interests and any 
other registrable interests, that relate to your public duties and must take steps to 
resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest, including 
registering and declaring interest in a matter which conforms to the procedures 
within the code.

The Code of Conduct contains a scheme for the registration of interests.  It exists to support 
openness and transparency; the public are able to see where you may have an interest.  
Secondly, the scheme of registration exists to protect individual Members against 
accusations of a conflict of interest etc.  Lastly, the registration of disclosable pecuniary 
interests is required by law.

You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of 
your authority, that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes 
(including party political purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local 
Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986.

Where your authority provides you with resources (for example telephone, computer and 
other IT facilities, transport or support from council employees), you must only use these 
resources or employees for carrying out your local authority business and any other activity 
which your authority has authorised you to use them for.

Page 112

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 7

You must be familiar with the rules applying to the use of these resources made by your 
authority. Failure to comply with the authority’s rules is likely to amount to a breach of the 
code.

If you authorise someone (for example a member of your family) to use your authority’s 
resources, you must take care to ensure that this is allowed by the authority’s rules.

You should never use council resources for purely political purposes, including designing 
and distributing party political material produced for publicity purposes.

You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully 
with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office including fully co-operating with 
any formal standards investigation or process.

This requirement is linked to carrying out all duties in a fair and transparent manner.  
Members are able to be held to account for their actions and, this being the case, you must 
be open to and cooperate with any legitimate scrutiny that is to be applied, including co-
operating with any formal standards investigations.

Councillors must not misuse the standards process by, for example, making trivial or 
malicious allegations against another councillor.

There is public interest in an effective standards process that is not subject to disruption or 
abuse.  Councillors should seek to maintain an ethical culture in their authority and showing 
appropriate respect for the process contributes to this.  

Councillors should not seek to misuse the standards process, for example, by making 
allegations against another councillor for the purposes of political gain.

You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your 
office.

You have a duty to promote and support high standards of conduct and be consistent with 
the seven general principles attached to the Code. 

Page 113

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 8

INTERESTS

Register of interests
Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of interests. A 
copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on the 
authority’s website.

You have two types of registrable interests  

a) A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and
b) Interests other than pecuniary interests that the Council has decided should be 

registered

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

1. These are interests which must be notified to the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days beginning with the day on which you become a member or co-opted member of 
the authority in accordance with the statutory requirements of  the Localism Act 2011. 
These are enforced by criminal sanction, and failure to declare is a criminal offence.

2. You need to register your interests so that the public, authority staff and fellow 
members know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.  The 
register is a document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises, and so 
allows others to know what interests you have, and whether they might give rise to a 
potential conflict of interest.

3. The register also protects you. You are responsible for deciding whether or not you 
should declare an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if 
others think that a potential conflict might arise.  It is also important that the public know 
about any interest that might have to be declared by you or other members, so that 
decision making is seen by the public as open and honest.  This helps to ensure that 
public confidence in the integrity of local government is maintained. 

4. A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner (which means 
spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a 
person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners) of the following 
descriptions:

(a) Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

(b)  Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) 
Act 1992). 

(c) Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority under 
which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and which 
has not been fully discharged. 

Page 114

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 9

(d) Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant 
authority.  

(e) Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
relevant authority for a month or longer.  

(f) Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is the relevant 
authority; and the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial 
interest.

(g) Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your 
knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the relevant authority; 
and either the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or if that share capital of 
that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

For the purposes of the foregoing “relevant authority” means the District Council, and 
“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which you notify the 
Monitoring Officer of your disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Notification of Other Interests

5. In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests, you must, within 28 days of the Code 
being adopted by or applied to your authority; or your election or appointment to office 
(where that is later), notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your interests 
within the following categories, which the Council has decided must be included in the 
register of interests:

.
(a) Details of  any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control 

or management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the District 
Council;

(b) Details of any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and which – 

(i) exercises functions of a public nature, 
(ii) is directed to charitable purposes or 
(iii) is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes influencing public 

opinion or policy (this includes political parties or trade union);
(c) Details of any persons from who you have a received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £50. (You must register any gifts and hospitality worth 
£50 or over that you receive personally in connection with your official duties).  

What is a “body exercising functions of a public nature”?
6. Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of such bodies, here are some 

criteria to consider when deciding whether or not a body meets that definition:

 Does that body carry out a public service?

Page 115

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 10

 Is the body taking the place of local or central government in carrying out the 
function?

 Is the body (including one outsourced in the private sector) exercising a function 
delegated to it by a public authority?

 Is the function exercised under legislation or according to some statutory power?

 Can the body be judicially reviewed?
Unless you answer “yes” to one of the above questions, it is unlikely that the body in your 
case is exercising functions of a public nature.
Examples of bodies included in this definition: government agencies, other councils, public 
health bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms-length 
management organisations carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, 
school governing bodies.

If you need further information or specific advice, please contact your Monitoring Officer.

What do things mean?

Here are some definitions from the legislation that may help you.  Ask for advice if 
necessary:

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011;

“body in which 
the relevant 
person has a 
beneficial 
interest”

means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body 
corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the 
securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an 
industrial and provident society;

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land 
which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person 
(alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive 
income;

“M” means a member of a relevant authority;

“member” includes a co-opted member;

Page 116

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I9AA4F73014C911E1A6718D7CED27531D


Sept20 Page 11

“relevant 
authority”

means the authority of which M is a member;

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M 
gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 
31(7), as the case may be, of the Act;

“relevant 
person”

means 

(i) M 
(ii)M's spouse or civil partner,
(iii) a person with whom M is living as husband and wife, 

or
(iv) a person with whom M is living as if they were civil 

partners,

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, 
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of 
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities 
of any description, other than money deposited with a building 
society.

Gifts and Hospitality
7. You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of receiving it.
8. You should ask yourself would I have been given this if I was not on the Council?  If you 

are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, we recommend that you 
register it or speak to the Monitoring Officer or your parish clerk where appropriate.

Page 117

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E014C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E214C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E214C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=17&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I5FACA830E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB


Sept20 Page 12

9. You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a 
member, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family, or gifts which you do not 
accept.  However, you should always register a gift or hospitality if it could be perceived 
as something given to you because of your position or if your authority requires you to.

What if I do not know the value of a gift or hospitality?
10. The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you should register 

it, as a matter of good practice and in accordance with the principles of openness and 
accountability in public life.

11. You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth.  Also, an 
accumulation of small gifts you received from the same source over a short period that 
add up to £50 or more should be registered.      

Changes to Interests
12. You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or change to any 

interest registered notify the Monitoring Officer of the  details of that new interest or 
change.

Disclosure of Interests
13. Where you have a registrable interest in any business of your authority, and where you 

are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of that interest, and you 
attend a meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you must 
disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the commencement 
of that consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent.

Sensitive interests
14. Where you consider that disclosure of the details of an interest could lead to you, or a 

person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the Monitoring 
Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of  the register that are 
made available for inspection and any published version of the register will exclude 
details of the interest, but may state that you have an interest, the details of which are 
withheld.

What is sensitive information?
15. It may include your sensitive employment (such as certain scientific research or  the 

Special Forces) or other interests that are likely to create serious risk of violence or 
intimidation against you or someone who lives with you.

16. You should provide this information to your Monitoring Officer and explain your 
concerns regarding the disclosure of the sensitive information; including why it is likely 
to create a serious risk that you or a person who lives with you will be subjected to 
violence or intimidation.  You do not need to include this information in your register of 
interests, if your Monitoring Officer agrees but you need to disclose at meetings the fact 
that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concern. 

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
17. If you are present at a meeting of the Council, Executive or any committee, sub-

committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the authority, and you have a 

Page 118

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 13

disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at  the 
meeting:

 You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting.
 You  may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting.
 If  the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the  meeting.
 If  the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, 

you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days.

Dispensations

19. The Monitoring Officer or Audit and Governance Committee may grant you a 
dispensation, but only in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on 
a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. These circumstances are 
where:

1. It is considered that without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited 
from participating in any particular business would be so great a proportion of the 
body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the business.  

2. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups on 
the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to alter the 
likely outcome of any vote relating to the business.  

3. That, without a dispensation, no member of the Executive would be able to 
participate on this matter.

4. That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests of persons 
living in the authority’s area

5. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation.

Offences

20. It is a criminal offence to
 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 

28 days of election
 Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on the 

register
 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary 

interest that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a meeting
 Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable 

pecuniary interest
 As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 

disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the Monitoring 
Officer within 28 days of the interest.

 Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading in 
notifying the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in 
disclosing such interest to a meeting

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding level 5 on the 
standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years.

Page 119

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 14

Bias/Predetermination

Although not part of the Code, members need to be clear that they are not biased going into 
the decision making process.

If you have a personal interest in a matter as a result of the matter affecting the well-being 
or financial position of yourself, member of your family or close association more than it 
would affect the majority of other people in the ward or electoral divisions affected by the 
decision, or in the authority’s areas or constituency then there may be potential for 
bias/predetermination.

The rules against bias say that there are three distinct elements.  The first seeks accuracy in 
public decision-making and the second seeks the absence of prejudice or partiality on the 
part of you as the decision-maker. An accurate decision is more likely to be achieved by a 
decision-maker who is in fact impartial or disinterested in the outcome of the decision and 
who puts aside any personal prejudices. 
The third requirement is for public confidence in the decision-making process. Even though 
the decision-maker may in fact be scrupulously impartial, the appearance of bias can itself 
call into question the legitimacy of the decision-making process. In general, the rule against 
bias looks to the appearance or risk of bias rather than bias in fact, in order to ensure that 
justice should not only be done, but should manifestly and undoubtedly be seen to be done. 
To varying degrees, these “requirements” might  be seen to provide the rationales behind 
what are generally taken to be three separate rules against bias: “automatic” (or 
“presumed”) bias, “actual” bias and “appearance” bias.
The rationale behind “automatic” or “presumed” bias appears to be that in certain situations 
(such as if you have a pecuniary or proprietary interest in the outcome of the proceedings) 
then it must be presumed that you are incapable of impartiality. Since a motive for bias is 
thought to be so obvious in such cases, the decisions are not allowed to stand even though 
no investigation is made into whether the decision-maker was biased in fact.  In these 
circumstances you should not participate in a decision.
The Localism Act 2011 has enshrined the rules relating to pre-disposition and 
predetermination into statute.  In essence you are not taken to have had, or appeared to 
have had, a closed mind when making a decision just because you have previously done 
anything that directly or in-directly indicated what view you may take in relation to a matter 
and that matter was relevant to the decision.  
So, you are entitled to have a pre-disposition one way or another as long as you have not 
pre-determined the outcome.  You are able to express an opinion providing that you come to 
the relevant meeting with an open mind, able to take account of all of the evidence and 
make your decision on the day.

What does “affecting well-being” or “financial position” mean?

The term “well-being” can be described as a condition of contentment and happiness.  
Anything that could affect your quality of life, either positively or negatively, is likely to affect 
your well-being.

A personal interest can affect you, your family or close personal associates positively and 
negatively.  So if you or they have the potential to gain or lose from a matter under 
consideration, a personal interest would need to be declared in both situations.

Page 120

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



Sept20 Page 15

Who is a member of your family or close association?

A member of your family should be given wide meaning.  It includes a partner (someone you 
are married to, your civil partner, or someone you live with in a similar capacity), a parent, 
parent-in-law, a son or daughter, a stepson, or stepdaughter, the child of a partner, a 
brother or sister of yourself  or your partner, a grandparent, a grandchild, an uncle or aunt, a 
nephew or niece and the partners of any of these people.

A person with whom you have a close association is someone that you are in either regular 
or irregular contact with over a period of time who is more than an acquaintance.  It  is 
someone a reasonable member of the public might think you would be prepared to favour or 
disadvantage when discussing a matter that affects them.  It may be a friend, a colleague, a 
business associate or someone whom you know through general social contacts.

What if I am not aware of my personal interest?

Clearly you cannot be expected to declare something of which you are unaware.  However 
you should not ignore the existence of interests which, from the point of view of a 
reasonable and objective observer, you should have been aware.

When must I leave the room where the meeting is held?

You must leave immediately before any debate starts.

Non participation in case of pecuniary interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Subject to the following paragraph below if you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any 
matter to be considered, or being considered, at the meeting, then you should declare that 
interest to the meeting and should leave the room whilst any discussion or vote takes place.

If a dispensation has been granted to you in relation to a disclosable pecuniary interest then, 
subject to the terms of the dispensation, you may be relieved from the above restrictions but 
will still be required to declare the interest to the meeting.
Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of the Council, you may 
attend a Meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions 
or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also allowed to 
attend the Meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise.  
Once any such representations etc have been made, the Member should leave the room 
whilst any discussion or vote takes place.

This would mean that as under current arrangements, Members will leave the room during 
an item in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

In the interests of transparency it is good practice for you to make the nature of a 
disclosable interest known when such a matter arises at a meeting.  You should identify the 
nature of the interest which you have in any matter so that is known and understood by all 
and is a matter of public record.  If a declaration is not made, other than through the 
register, it would not necessarily be apparent to anyone who is present at the meeting why a 
particular Member is not participating or voting in any matter.

Page 121

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee
1 October 2020

Employee Register of Gifts and Hospitality

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Debbie Storr

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report is presented to review the register of interests and gifts and 

hospitality for employees for the period September 2019 to September 2020.

2.0 Recommendation 
          It is recommended that the Committee notes the report

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Officer’s code of conduct for Barrow Borough Council Employees provides 

guidance on interests and gifts and hospitality.  The Council has Hospitality 
Guidance which provides information as to how employees should treat any 
offers of gifts and hospitality.

3.2 There is a standard corporate form and offers of hospitality that are declined 
should also be included in any declarations.

3.3 The Audit and Governance Committee considers the Council’s compliance with 
its own and other published standards and controls and considers the 
arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing necessary actions to 
ensure compliance with best practice.

3.4 It is proposed the Committee has an overview of the Employee Register and 
reviews on an annual basis.

4.0 Consultation 
All Heads of Service have been asked to confirm that the register of interests is 
up to date. In the last twelve months, no significant gifts or hospitality has been 
received and the Monitoring Officer has requested an update of any formal 
declarations. An update will be provided at the meeting.

Page 123

Agenda Item 16



5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options.  It is proposed that the annual review forms part 

of the Committee’s work programme.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins the objectives of the Council Plan

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 Not applicable

Legal 
7.1.2 Under the Council’s procedures employees are required to declare appropriate 

interests and any gifts and hospitality received.
. 

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Register is not maintained or 
incomplete

Officers could be in 
breach of code of 
conduct 

Regular monitoring and 
sufficient awareness and 
training

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report 
None

Page 124

Agenda Item 16



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit Committee and Governance
1st October 2020

Risk Management Report

 
Report from:  Corporate Support Manager

Report Author: Corporate Support Manager

Wards:  All wards may be impacted

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Council Risk Register has been updated by Management Team and the 

policy has been updated to reflect changes to the register.. 
2.0 Recommendation 

Members are invited to consider the risk report and determine whether further 
action is required.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Council’s risk register is submitted to Management Team on a quarterly basis 

to be reviewed and updated. The report is presented to the Audit Committee for 
them to determine whether the Council is adhering to the Council’s Risk Policy. 

The Risk register was last presented to Management Team in September 2020. 
During the Covid -19 lockdown period, a number of risks had to be assessed and 
action taken in a short time period. This was undertaken by the Barrow Covid -19 
Strategic Co-ordinating Group and it was not appropriate for them to go the 
process defined in the Risk Policy. Now that we are in the recovery phase it is 
appropriate to return to the designated process.

4.0 Consultation 
We do not need undertake a consultation.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Not applicable

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
6.1 There are links to all the Council’s priorities

Page 125

Agenda Item 17



7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1     There maybe financial implications relating to risk and that will be considered on 

an individual basis.

Legal 
7.2     There maybe legal implications relating to risk and that will be considered on an 

individual basis.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
7.3     There maybe implications relating to risk and that will be considered on an 

individual basis.

Equality and Diversity 
7.4     There are no equality or diversity implications related to this report.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
None compliance with Risk 
Policy

Risks to the Council and 
local people are not 
considered

Process via Management 
Team and Audit 
Committee

Risk Consequence Controls required 
N/A

Contact Officers 
Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Corporate Risk Register 
2 

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available 
1
2

Add links where possible

Page 126

Agenda Item 17

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk


Corporate and Operational Risk Register

1

Corporate Risk Register

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

1/20/1

Significant changes 
arising from Central 
Government 
Legislation.

5 5 25

 Regulatory changes
 Changes to service delivery
 Service performance implications
 Resource requirements

Awareness
 Monitoring Officer will receive notification.
 Horizon scanning by Management Team and Heads of 

Service.
 Membership of professional and local government bodies 

aids horizon scanning.
Actions
 Management Team will determine actions to be taken.
 We will create detailed project plans to manage 

implementation of changes.
 We will adopt a management of change approach to mitigate 

against significant impact to the Council and its staff
 Service Manager will be responsible for implementing 

changes through service planning.
 Financial and workforce planning will be reviewed.
 External support will be acquired e.g. WRAP
 The Council will respond to changes in Covid guidance.
 The Council is preparing changes to local government 

arrangements.

2 5 10 Head of legal and 
Governance

2/20/1
Poor internal and 
external  
communications.

4 4 16

 Poorly informed direction of resources and lack of support 
for change.

 Providing inaccurate information to the public may result in 
processing errors and reworking.

 Public may have a negative perception of the Council. 

Awareness
 Communication strategy on priorities
 Internal & external regular publications
 Regular staff communication from the Chief Executive 

Officer
 Comments, Compliments and Complaints monitoring and 

reporting procedure
Actions
 Regular staff and management meetings
 Key stakeholder networks for consultation
 Co-ordinated press releases
 Update Social Media Policy
 Develop and maintain website and intranet.
 Use external communication providers
 Develop a Communications and Engagement Strategy

2 2 4 Head of Paid Service

3/20/1

Failure to achieve 
efficiency saving, 
maximise income, 
or performance 
targets. 

5 5 25

 Greater costs than budgeted for. 
 Additional costs to mitigate Covid

Awareness
 Performance Management Framework
 Regular reporting to Management team
Actions
 Heightened analysis of budgets and services
 Service transformation
 Business/service planning
 Pursue action to increase income streams
 Budget and performance monitoring
 Secure additional government support when available

4 4 16 Director of 
Resources

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

2

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

4/20/1
Poor management 
of projects and 
contracts.

4 5 20

 Leads to overruns on time or cost and failure to achieve 
project aims. 

 Non-compliance with financial regulations 
 Potential of Fraud and corruption

Awareness 
 Managing Contract performance.
 Contract Checklist 
 Service plans
Actions
 Project Management methodology.
 External project management support
 External contract management support
 Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations
 Budgetary control

3 2 6

Director of People 
and Place

Legal and 
Governance should 
be involved at start 
of contract process 

5/20/1

Ineffective 
workforce planning, 
or imposed 
reductions in 
resources. 

4 5 20

 Poor standards of service or disruption to service.  
 Service transformation and commissioning can help build 

resilience.
 Loss of qualified and knowledgeable staff exposing the 

Council to risk of service failure and legal challenge.

Awareness
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures
 Service planning process  
Actions 
 Organisational review
 Organisational Development
 Training and development
 Working environment
 Staff surveys/consultation
 Flexible working
 Business continuity plans
 Management training
 Appraisals
 Service Planning
 Values and behaviours training

2 3 6 Director of 
Resources

6/20/1 Failure to secure 
and manage data. 5 5 25

 Loss of/ corruption of/ inaccuracy of data, results in 
disruption to services and breaches of security.  

 Major IT physical hardware failure or electronic attack, such 
as viruses, hacking or spyware, causes disruption to 
services and breaches of security.  

 Financial penalties and reputational risk.

Awareness
 Data breach reporting
 IT security monitoring
 Awareness of cyber security risks
Actions
 Data protection policy and procedure
 Freedom of Information publication scheme
 Data retention policy and procedure for archive and disposal
 Information breach response plan
 Review Business Continuity Plan
 IT system security
 Public Services Network compliance
 IT and data online training modules
 GDPR training and policy
 Review data sharing agreements
 Data owner central register
 Anti-virus software
 Review of disaster recovery arrangements
 IT security policies
 Clear desk strategy
 Produce Agile Working Policy
 Review of agile working security
 Virtual meetings policy

2 3 6
Director of resources

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

3

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

7/20/1 Economic change. 5 5 25

 Imposed savings requirements, the financial settlement and 
Fairer Funding Review; Housing Revenue Account 
restraints; reliance on Council Tax and Business Rate 
income.

 Changes in service demands and levels of income and 
unsustainable costs for the Council.

Awareness
 Council wide efficiency monitoring and reporting
 Budget monitoring
 Debt management policy
Actions 
 Section 151/Chief Finance Officer
 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders
 Organisational review to ensure we have the right posts and 

the right skills.
 Medium Term Financial Plan and Budget Strategy
 Political decisions aligned to planned budget strategies and 

available resources
 Review of fees and charges
 Maintaining and contributing to financial reserves
 Strong financial management system
 Capital finance risk management
 Internal Audit review of fundamental systems
 Modelling and monitoring of Business Rates (including 

appeals) and Council Tax
 Spending Review technical assessment

4 4 16 Section 151 Officer

8/20/1

Natural disaster 
pandemic; 
malicious or 
accidental incident.

5 4 20

 Affects support required by citizens or disrupts existing 
Council services.

Awareness
 Information provided by external organisations
 Communications Strategy
Actions
 Emergency plan 
 Emergency planning exercises
 Review Business Continuity Plan
 Review of disaster recovery arrangements
 Arrangements with partner organisations
Service arrangements with major contractors

4 4 16 Head of Paid Service

9/20/1 Changes in political 
priorities. 5 4 20

 Resulting in immediate changes that require additional 
resource to achieve and fail to reflect priorities determined 
by consultation.

 Potential Local Government reorganisation impacts on other 
priorities

Actions
 Financial and workforce planning
 Monitoring by Management Team and reporting to the 

Executive Committee
 Clear corporate planning and regular performance 

monitoring
 Effective service planning
 Respond to national consultation on key policy changes
 Membership of the Local Government Association
 Member training sessions to reflect changes in priorities

5 3 15 Head of Paid Service 

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

4

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

10/20/1
Major Health and 
Safety incident at 
the Council. 

4 4 16

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and 
possible prosecution.

 Unknown issues relating to working at home?

Awareness
 Corporate wide H&S training
Actions
 Health & Safety (H&S) Board
 H&S Management Group
 H&S procedures – addressed at every service area
 H&S audits /peer review
 Specialist H&S advisor
 Insurance.
 Assess impact of agile working and provide additional 

equipment if required.
 Review agile working guidance

4 3 12 Head of Paid Service

11/20/1

Brexit
Impact of the UK 
exiting the EU with 
or without a 
Withdrawal 
Agreement

4 4 16

 Impact on the Council of new legislative framework in a 
range of areas.

 Potential civil disruption / product shortages
 The Council has a registered Brexit Lead
 The Council is part of the Cumbria Local Authorities Brexit 

Forum and the Regional Network
 The Council is part of the Cumbria Local Resilience Forum
 Funding has been made available from Central Government 

which is in reserve for any short term activity that may be 
required.

 There is a continued review of the potential implications to 
the Council as the progress towards leaving the EU is 
ongoing.

4 3 12 Assistant Director – 
Community Services

12/20/1
Failure to deliver 
the objectives of the 
Council plan

5 3 15

 Opportunities to deliver improvements for the Borough may 
be missed.

 Detrimental impact for residents.
 Unable to attract new businesses and residents to the 

Borough.

 The Council Plan will be presented to the Executive 
Committee in November.

 The plan contains actions which will deliver the plan’s 
objectives.

 Service plans for each department are currently being 
prepared. 

5 2 10 Chief Executive

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

5

Operational Risk Register

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Risk owner

1/20/1

Service provision 
and performance 
affected by 
organisational 
change, industrial 
action and/or staff 
sickness.

4 5 20

 Complaints, poor performance and possible further costs. Awareness
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures
 Organisational culture
 Management training
Actions 
 Working environment
 Staff surveys/consultation
 Flexible working
 Business continuity plans
 Appraisals and professional training
 Performance monitoring and management
 Clear absence management scheme
 Workforce strategy

3 4 12 Section 151 Officer

2/20/1

Failure of contractor 
or partners to deliver 
services or meet 
agreed performance 
targets.

4 5 20

 Additional costs or failed objectives. Awareness
 Project management
Actions 
 Procurement processes – including financial 

aspects/contract standing orders/equality standards
 Contract process – creation of robust contracts.
 Creation of a new post to improve the quality of contracts
 Accountability and risk ownership documented.
 Service Level Agreements
 Contract monitoring
 Trained/skilled staff
 Established governance arrangements

4 3 12 Director of 
Resources

3/20/1

Potential for fraud, 
corruption, 
malpractice or error, 
by internal or 
external threats.  In 
additional to 
immediate financial 
loss. 

5 3 12

 Could harm reputation and lead to additional inquiry costs 
and penalties.

Awareness
 Appropriate culture and risk awareness
Actions
 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy
 Whistleblowing policy
 National Anti-Fraud Network
 National Fraud Initiative
 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders
 Codes of conduct
 Appropriately trained staff
 Segregation of duties
 Supported financial management system
 Budget monitoring regime
 Internal Audit review of systems and controls
 Insurance
 Annual Governance Statement

3 1 3 Director of 
Resources

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

6

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Risk owner

4/20/1
Significant 
infrastructure 
projects aren’t 
properly supported.

5 4 20

 Projects aren’t delivered in a timely manner.
 Additional project cost.
 Loss of reputation.

.

Awareness
 Monitoring at IT Users Board
 Service delivery plan will establish key milestones.
Actions
 Regular reviews by the Major Projects Board and the Major 

Projects Advisory Board.
 Review resource and skill requirements.
 Realign resources with the Council’s priorities.
 Address skill shortages.
 Develop project management skills where required

5 2 10 Director of People 
and Place.

5/20/1

Failure to deliver 
repairs services due 
to Covid 19 
restrictions

5 3 15

 Unable to carryout  repairs and maintenance services to 
housing assets within the borough

 Potential increase in disrepair claims from Solicitors
 Tenants at risk of harm from defective components and 

maintenance of gas/electric services
 Responsive Repairs Contractor may not be able to maintain 

services due to economic downturn
 Materials and components are not available from builders 

merchants

 Arrangements in place to ensure adequate trade resources 
remain available to provide 24 hour emergency cover 

 Covid 19 Risk Assessments and safe systems of work 
signed off and in place, including PPE and tenant 
questionnaire

 Routine (30 day repairs) are presently on hold to reduce 
build up/backlog of overdue orders

 Investigating zonal working by housing area to improve 
efficiency, reduce cold calling and increase communications 
with tenants

 Additional software purchased from Eviid to reduce number 
of home visits by staff and provide improved live video chat 
with tenants to identify repair priority and diagnosis

5 2 10

Assistant Director - 
Housing

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 17
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit Committee and Governance
1st October 2020

Draft Governance Statement

 
Report from:  Corporate Support Manager

Report Author: Corporate Support Manager

Wards:  All wards may be impacted

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Council has responsibility for ensuring that Council business is conducted 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for. Part of this governance process is the preparation and 
publication of an Annual Governance Statement which is a self assessment of 
how effective we consider our governance arrangements to be. It is a draft 
document to allow Members to provide feedback, the Final version being 
presented in November.

2.0 Recommendation 
Members are invited to consider the draft governance statement and provide 
feedback

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 A Management Team consisting of the following Officers were involved in 

reviewing this draft Annual Governance Statement 

 Chief Executive - Head of Paid Services
 Director of Resources - S151 Officer
 Director of People and Place
 Assistant Director - Housing 
 Head of Legal and Governance - Monitoring Officer
 Head of Internal Audit 
 Corporate Support Manager

The Council has assessed itself against the principles of good governance that 
are defined in the Local Code of Corporate Governance

Page 133

Agenda Item 18



4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Not applicable

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1     There will not be financial implications arising from the governance statement

Legal 
7.2     There will not be legal implications relating to the governance statement

Equality and Diversity 
7.3     There are no equality or diversity implications related to this report.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
There is a risk that the 
statement is not published by 
the required date.

Damage to the Council’s 
and local people are not 
considered

Process via Management 
Team and Audit and 
Governance Committee

Risk Consequence Controls required 
N/A

Contact Officers 
Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Draft Governance Statement 
2 

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available 
1
2

Add links where possible

Page 134

Agenda Item 18

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk


Version Control: 

Document Name: Annual Governance Statement 2020

Version: Version 1

Author: Corporate Support Manager

Approved by: Audit and Governance Committee

Date Approved: October 2020

Review Date: May 2021

Annual Governance Statement – 2019-2020

Page 135

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 1

Scope and Responsibility

Barrow Borough Council is responsible for delivering a wide range of statutory 
and discretionary services to the public and organisations in the area of the 
Borough.  The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with law and proper standards, and that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to 
a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting 
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating 
the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the 
management of risk.

Governance

Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the 
intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved.

The Council’s Governance Framework

Effective governance in the public sector encourages improved decision 
making and efficient use of resources. Effective governance is characterised 
by robust scrutiny, which provides important pressures for improving public 
sector performance and tackling corruption. Effective governance can improve 
management leading to better service delivery, and, ultimately, better 
outcomes.

The Council’s governance framework comprises the systems and processes, 
and the culture and values, by which the Council is directed and controlled 
and the activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the 
community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 
appropriate, cost-effective services. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance 
framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable and proportionate 
level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and 
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-
going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement 
of Barrow Borough Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 

Page 136

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 2

likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, 
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

CIPFA has developed a framework for good governance in the public sector 
based on the ‘International Framework: Good Governance in the Public 
Sector’ which the Council works towards. The Council has approved a Code 
of Corporate Governance which is consistent with this framework and is 
published on the Council’s website.

To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and 
individuals working for public sector organisations must try to achieve the 
Council’s objectives while acting in the public interest at all times.

Our Local Code of Corporate Governance is the document that sets out the 
framework within which the Council conducts its business and affairs; it is 
based on seven principles of good governance.

The seven principles of good governance set out in the framework are:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating a strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law.

 The Council’s constitution defines the roles and responsibilities of the 
Council’s decision making, regulatory, Audit and Governance and 
Overview and Scrutiny committees. It also defines the roles of the 
statutory officers and includes the delegations that officers hold.

 Members and officers have an induction which set includes the 
behaviours that are expected.

 The Council’s values and behaviours will be rolled out to all staff and 
Members during 2020-21.

 The Council has recently appointed a new post of Head of Legal and 
Governance.

 A fraud hotline is in place to allow confidential reporting so that 
anonymous complaints can be investigated.

 A process for regular staff appraisals is in place.
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

 There is a process for consultation in place through the Future High 
Streets Fund, the Town Deal Board and the Major Projects Board.

 The Council has engaged a Social Media and Public Relations provider 
to positively project the Barrow Borough Council brand and attain a 
stronger reach to customers. This will be developed through a revised 
Communications Strategy

 The Council is developing its website to provide a key means of 
communication in an open and transparent way.

Page 137

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/7515.pdf/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/7515.pdf/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/7515.pdf/


Page 3

 We provide clear recommendations to the decision making committees, 
this is by supported reasoning and evidence. We assess the financial, 
legal and equalities risks relating to those decisions and provide 
Members with the outputs from those assessments.

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits.

 The Council published its plan for 2020- 2024 and has identified three 
priority areas.

 We are developing service plans to ensure we deliver the priorities 
agreed in the Council Plan

 The Council has submitted a business case for Future High Street 
Fund which could bring £21m of funding into the Town Centre

  The Council is developing an investment plan for Town Deal funding 
which could draw up to £29m of funding for regeneration

 The Council successfully applied for £1m of heritage lottery funding to 
improve the Dock Museum

 The Council successfully applied for £1.1m heritage grant to improve 
Duke Street.

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
intended outcomes.

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy is reviewed annually

 The council is developing service plans to ensure we deliver the 
priorities agreed in the Council Plan

 The Council has an effective overview and Scrutiny function.
E. Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it.

 The Council supports and encourages staff to undertake professional 
training.

 The Council has an effective Member training programme in place

 Staff have biannual briefings with senior management.

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management.

 The Council has a risk policy which reviewed regularly by Management 
Team and is approved by the Executive Committee.

 The Council has corporate and operational risk registers which are 
reviewed regularly by Management team and the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Page 138

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 4

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver 
effective accountability.

 The Audit and Governance Committee has defined roles which are set 
out in the Council’s Constitution.

 External auditors routinely attend Audit Committee meetings.

 The Head of Internal Audit access to the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

 Members are required to register interests at the beginning of every 
committee meeting.

The core principles for good governance in the public sector are high level 
and bring together a number of concepts. The figure below sets out the 

relationship between the principles:

Page 139

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 5

Review of Effectiveness

Barrow Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system 
of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the 
senior managers within the Council who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the appointed 
auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

A Management Team consisting of the following Officers were involved in 
reviewing this draft Annual Governance Statement 

 Chief Executive - Head of Paid Services
 Director of Resources - S151 Officer
 Director of People and Place
 Assistant Director - Housing 
 Head of Legal and Governance - Monitoring Officer
 Head of Internal Audit 
 Corporate Support Manager

The Council has assessed itself against the principles of good governance 
that are defined in the Local Code of Corporate Governance. 

In order to demonstrate that the existing governance and control 
arrangements are fit for purpose and are complied with, Corporate Support 
undertake reviews of individual departments.

To support the self assessment we reviewed the source documents 
recommended in the CIPFA guidance schedule and identified additional 
evidence to demonstrate compliance with the supporting principals of good 
governance.  

In 2019 the Council invited the Local Government Association to undertake a 
Governance review and has developed plans to delivers the 
recommendations from the review. 

In 2020 the Council invited the Local Government Association to undertake a 
Corporate Peer review and has developed plans to deliver the 
recommendations from the review. 

The Constitution

The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness has updated and agreed a Constitution 
which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the 

Page 140

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8465.pdf
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8465.pdf
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8465.pdf


Page 6

procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent 
and accountable to local people.

Some of these processes are required by the law, while others are a matter 
for the Council to choose and set out the basic rules governing the Council's 
business.

The Constitution was comprehensively revised in 2015 and is regularly 
reviewed to ensure it is fit for purpose. The most recent review was in 2020, 
which considered delegation and procedural arrangements and also has 
regard to the recommendations of the Local Government Association 
Governance Review. Changes have also been to address the changes 
brought about by the Coronavirus Pandemic, e.g. virtual meetings, when 
decision making was further reviewed and a Virtual Meetings Rules and 
Protocol was adopted

The Constitution sets out the Council’s ethical standards for Elected Members 
and Officers.

We have reviewed and adopted formal codes of conduct defining standards of 
personal behaviour for Members and Officers. The Monitoring Officer monitors 
compliance with the Member’s code of conduct. The Members code is 
currently under review.

The Chief Executive (Head of Paid Services) has overall responsibility for 
ensuring compliance with the officer’s code of conduct. 

We have put in place effective systems to protect the rights of staff. We 
ensure that policies for whistle-blowing are accessible to staff and those 
contracting with the Council, and arrangements for the support of whistle-
blowers, are in place.

The Constitution includes the Council’s Contract Standing Orders, Financial 
Regulations, committee structure, delegation powers and how the Council 
operates.

The Section 151 Officer is responsible to the Council for ensuring that 
appropriate advice is given on all financial matters, for keeping proper 
financial records and accounts, and for maintaining an effective system of 
internal financial control.

The Council takes a longer term view and publishes plans so the public are 
aware of our intended outcomes. This information can be found published in 
documents including the Budget Strategy, the Council’s Priorities and the 
Council Plan. 

The Council has prepared and published a plan which sets out the Council’s 
priorities and a Medium Term Financial Plan which is a financial 
representation of the Council’s Vision and supports the priorities.  

Page 141

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 7

The Council will enable the Chief Financial Officer to bring influence to bear 
on all material decisions and provide advice on the levels of reserves and 
balances to be retained. The Chief Financial Officer has responsibility for 
ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful.
The Constitution is published on the Council’s website: Council constitution

Decision making process

The Council Plan

The Council Plan is a strategic document under which the Council’s other 
policy framework documents sit. It communicates the Council’s Vision which 
specifies intended outcomes for the period from 2020 - 2024. The plan details 
how the Council will achieve the priorities. The Council plan will be supported 
by service plans which reflect the Council’s priorities.

Council decisions are made by either the Executive Committee under 
delegated powers or by Full Council. All meetings are open to the public and 
we attempt to publish all committee agenda items under “Part 1” unless there 
is the need to preserve confidentiality where it is proper and appropriate to do 
so.

The Council will develop and retain a management structure that provides 
leadership and creates the opportunity for staff to work effectively and 
efficiently to achieve the Council objectives. We will provide training and 
support to enable staff to develop their skills so they can achieve their full 
potential. We will develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, 
including the ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when 
external expert advice is needed. We will ensure that the statutory officers 
have the skills, resources and support necessary to perform effectively in their 
roles and that these roles are properly understood throughout the Council.

Members are provided with financial and performance reports on a regular 
basis which demonstrates how the Council achieves value for money.

Agendas, reports and minutes for all Council meetings are published on the 
Council’s website. Committee Reports and Minutes

Customer engagement

We strive to engage with stakeholders on an individual and collective basis to 
demonstrate that we deliver services and outcomes which meet the needs 
and expectations of the public. These arrangements will recognise that 
different sections of the community have different priorities and establish 
robust processes for dealing with these competing demands.

Barrow Borough Council welcomes and encourages attendance and 
contributions by the public at its meetings. Public participation guidelines were 

Page 142

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-constitution/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-constitution/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=7062
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=7062
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-minutes-agendas/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-minutes-agendas/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-minutes-agendas/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-minutes-agendas/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/barrow-council/council-minutes-agendas/


Page 8

agreed by Council in June 2020 as part of the Council’s commitment to 
community governance and openness.

We have a customer service strategy which defines how we will engage with 
customers and other stakeholders and involve them in improving our services. 

Partnership working

The Council participates in formal and informal partnerships to allow for 
resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes to be achieved more 
effectively. The Council is actively involved in partnership boards that 
delivering key improvements to the Borough.

We contribute to and support initiatives that benefit the residents and 
businesses in the Borough.  We ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a 
shared commitment to change and a culture that promotes and accepts 
challenge among partners.

When supporting stakeholder relationships we are clear about the Terms of 
Reference and clearly define our role. Our arrangements will recognise that 
different sections of the community have different priorities and establish 
robust processes for dealing with these competing demands.

Managing risk

The Council recognises that risk management is an integral part of all 
activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision making. We have 
risk management arrangements in place including mitigating actions to 
support the achievement of the Council’s intended outcomes. We work with 
our contractors to understand our shared risks. We ensure that risk 
management is embedded into the culture of the Council, with Members and 
managers at all levels recognising that risk management is part of their job. 

Managing performance

The Council has a performance management framework which was agreed by 
the Executive Committee and performance data is reported to Management 
Team and the Executive Committee on a quarterly basis. 

The Council produces a number of strategies and policies to ensure we 
comply with our responsibilities in terms of Use of Resources and Value for 
Money, these are published on the Council’s website. Corporate Documents

Managing data

Page 143

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-documents/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-documents/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-documents/


Page 9

The Council undertook a review of data management in preparation for the 
implementation of the General Data Protection Regulation which has 
delivered improvements to internal controls to facilitate compliance with the 
regulation.

The Council has made significant investment in the IT infrastructure to 
minimise the loss of data through cyber attacks.

Governance arrangements and internal control

Audit and Governance Committee

We maintain the Audit Committee to raise awareness and take the lead in 
ensuring high standards of conduct are embedded within the Council’s 
culture. The governance function of the Audit Committee includes:

 Consider reports and opinion of the internal audit function.
 Consider specific reports from internal audit and ensure agreed 

recommendations are implemented in a reasonable time frame.
 Consider reports and opinion of the appointed auditor.
 Monitor the risk management process.
 Monitor the Councils policies on the anti-fraud and anti-corruption 

strategy which are detailed in the Code of Governance.

Additional corporate assurance arrangements for 2019/20 include:

An external Governance Review which was facilitated by the Local 
Government Association.

A review of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee was undertaken 
early in 2020 following which the name of the Committee was changed to 
Audit and Governance Committee to reflect the incorporation of the standards 
and governance arrangements and the terms of reference amended to reflect 
these and the delegations to the Monitoring Officer. 

The Council publishes an Annual Governance Statement, signed by the Chief 
Executive and the Chair of the Audit Committee to confirm that they are 
satisfied that we have effective governance arrangements in place.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

We maintain an effective Overview and Scrutiny Committee to provide 
constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives before, during 
and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 
performance and any organisation for which delivers services on behalf of the 
Council. Members of the Scrutiny Committee are offered formal training by an 
external provider.

Page 144

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 10

Internal Audit

The internal audit function develops an annual audit plan which is risk based 
and it is agreed by the Director of Resources and the Audit Committee. The 
audit plan provides a structure approach to reviewing internal control 
arrangements. 

Based on the Plan, Internal Audit provides specific reports and 
recommendations. It also provides an Annual Report on the internal control 
arrangements which includes an audit opinion in support of the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. The opinion is derived from work carried out by Internal 
Audit during the year as part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan.  

Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion Statement

This opinion statement is provided in support of the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015.  The opinion is derived from work carried out by Internal Audit during 
the year as part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan.  The Plan for 2019/20 was 
developed to primarily provide management with independent assurance on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment. 

The PSIAS state that the internal control environment comprises three key 
areas: internal control, governance and risk management processes.  My 
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control environment is based on an 
assessment of each of these key areas.  

As referred to above, there is a requirement for the “system of Internal 
Control” to include an assessment of sources of assurance, beyond just that 
of Internal Audit itself.  As the Council is required to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement, sources of assurance are reflected and reviewed 
within this process, which Internal Audit are a part of; therefore the control 
environment is reviewed more fully in this way.

Head of internal Audit Opinion Statement for 2019/2.

This report provides reasonable assurance that the organisation’s framework 
of governance, risk management and control predominantly operated 
satisfactorily during 2019/20.

My detailed opinion is that, for the systems reviewed, the Council has 
basically sound systems of control in place, although there are weaknesses 
which put some of the system objectives at risk, these mainly relate to areas 
of contract management and control, leases, procurement and certain areas 
within Community Services.  The profile of assurance is in our experience 

Page 145

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 11

comparable to other local authorities, with the majority of Council systems 
receiving Substantial Assurance.  

There are, however, five areas where only Restricted Assurance can be 
provided, which relate to the following final reports:

 Maritime Streets Landscaping Design; 

 Procurement;

 Cavendish Park Changing Rooms;

 Refuse Collection, Recycling and Street Cleaning 2017-2024; and

 Maritime Streets Landscaping Works.

There are, two areas where No Assurance can be provided, which relate to 
the following final reports:

 Phoenix Business Centre; and 

 Lawson St

Weaknesses found as a result of our work, together with our 
recommendations for improvement, have been included in our reports to 
senior management and Members.  Additionally, any weaknesses identified 
through the Annual Governance Statement process are recorded separately 
and reflect the assurance provided from all sources both internal and external.

.

Keith Jackson

Head of Internal Audit

Page 146

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 12

Impacts of COVID-19

As lockdown measures were introduced across the country, the authority 
adjusted to the significant disruption to staffing across services and functions.  
The business continuity plans were implemented to ensure that essential 
services continued to be delivered to our residents.  A number of measures 
were quickly introduced to ensure the safety of staff, Members and customers, 
whilst maintaining service delivery; buildings were closed to the public, agile 
and flexible ways of working were introduced, virtual meetings were 
established, and social distancing and health and safety measures were 
established.

In order to deliver the local authority elements of the national COVID-19 
support package of business grants, business rate reliefs and hardship relief, 
it was necessary to temporarily reassign resources and defer other priorities 
to ensure an effective response was achieved.  The new powers from 
Coronavirus legislation were adopted by the Council.  More details of the 
authority’s response can be found in the Growing Forward report presented to 
the Executive Committee on the 8 July 2020.

Page 147

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



Page 13

Certification Statement 

The review of the governance arrangements for the financial year 2019/20 
has not highlighted any areas of major concern for the Council.  We believe 
that the existing arrangements are fit for purpose and are adequate to meet 
the Council’s corporate aims. 

Councillor Mrs A Burns     S Plum

Chair of the Audit Committee                               Chief Executive 

Page 148

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



The Redmond 
Review 

PSA North briefing 

September 2020 

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 19



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Commercial in confidence 

Overall 

 Overarching theme is greater accountability and improved 

transparency for financial reporting – we should anchor this in all 
our responses, links to our sense of purpose; 

 Reform is urgent – already considering implementation plan – NAO 

and MHCLG both engaged and will encourage use of voluntary 
undertakings in advance of legislative reform. 

 

2 

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 19



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Commercial in confidence 

Reforms to audit providers 

 Audit is currently under-priced by c25% - considered to be “very serious 
indeed” by the Review team; 

 LA reporting timetable to be formalised at 30 Sept rather than 31 July; 

 LAs want the firms to have better capacity of properly trained and experienced 

people to deliver audits that are properly tailored to their issues and delivered to 

reasonable timescales. This is our part of the ‘contract’ to deliver on – it will take 

time and we should emphasise in our future discussions all the efforts we make in 

this area – specialist teams and central support arrangements, high number of 
recruits, extensive bespoke training arrangements etc; 

 Audit providers can be sanctioned for poor work – but only in areas key to the 

user, eg if they missed and did not call out the fact that a council was heading for 
financial meltdown; 

 More audit liaison with inspectorates and IA expected. 

 
3 

P
age 151

A
genda Item

 19



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Commercial in confidence 

Reforms to council arrangements 

 Audit should be higher profile in councils – auditor to address full 

council each year to avoid messages being diluted through 
interaction with audit committees; 

 Attention needed to proficiency of s151 officers; 

 Accounting arrangements need improvement; 

 Annual formal meeting between 3 statutory officers and the 
auditor to emphasise the importance of the audit; 

 All audit committees to include independent members and to be 
properly trained. 

 

4 

P
age 152

A
genda Item

 19



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Commercial in confidence 

Reforms to regime 

 Regulation to be brought together in formal systems leadership 

arrangements – Office for Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR). 

This body to be responsible for accountability, oversight and 

regulation and to comprise people currently working on local audit 

responsibilities at NAO, PSAA, FRC, ICAEW. To comprise 35 or so 

people at a budget of £5m pa – to be clear that this is not the rebirth 
of the Audit Commission (eg budget is c5% of the Commission’s).  

 A stakeholder committee, chaired by MHCLG and comprising 

FRC, ICAEW, CIPFA, LGA, BEIS, HMT and the audit firms to meet 4 
times a year; 

5 

P
age 153

A
genda Item

 19



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Commercial in confidence 

Reforms to regime 

 Summary accounts to be trialled in 20-21 and implemented in 21-
22 – these to be reconciled to stat accounts and audited from 21-22; 

 CIPFA to consider the Accounting Code and what can be changed 

to ensure LA accounts are more meaningful and only focus on what 
matters – eg less attention to property valuations; 

 NHS is currently outside the scope (so could end up with its own 

arrangements entirely, or even continue to follow current 

arrangements). This is an important immediate priority to address 

6 

P
age 154

A
genda Item

 19



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Commercial in confidence 

Questions 

7 

P
age 155

A
genda Item

 19



grantthornton.co.uk 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services  to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

P
age 156

A
genda Item

 19


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Work Plan
	AG Work Plan 22092020 App 1

	9 Internal Audit Final Reports
	Payroll FINAL report 19-13 exec summary

	10 Internal Audit Progress Report
	April to October 2020 Progress Report

	11 Ombudsman Report
	Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2020(appendix 1)
	A&G Ombudsman recd decd appendix 2

	12 Compliments and Complaints
	complaints report (appendix 1)
	Compliments appendix 2

	13 Best Practice Recommendations
	Appendix 1 BPR action plan

	14 Recruitment of Independent Person
	15 Code of Conduct and Social Media Reports
	Guidance report - appendix 1
	SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS appendix 2 guidance report
	Guidance - code of conduct appendix 3

	16 Gifts and Hospitality Register
	17 Risk Register
	Corporate Risk Register 140920

	18 Draft Governance Statement
	Annual Governance Statement 2020 draft

	19 Update from External Auditors

